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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I am Christine

          3  Quinn.  I Chair the City Council's Health Committee,

          4  and I am joined today by Chairperson Kendall

          5  Stewart, who chairs the Council's Committee on

          6  Immigration Issues.

          7                 We are joined by some of our

          8  colleagues, there is, unfortunately, literally, I

          9  think four Committee meetings going on

         10  simultaneously in two buildings.  So people will be

         11  in and out. But at the moment, we are joined by

         12  Council Member Annabel Palma of the Bronx, who is a

         13  member of the Immigration Committee; and Council

         14  Member Al Vann of Brooklyn, who is a member of the

         15  Health Committee.

         16                 And we are here today, excuse me, to

         17  have an oversight issue on the issue of Immigrant

         18  Health Care, of the status of immigrant health in

         19  our City, and an oversight hearing on addressing

         20  with the hopeful goal of reducing the barriers to

         21  health care, which are presently exists for

         22  immigrants in our City.

         23                 We are also going to be hearing

         24  testimony on two resolutions.  Reso. 568 and Reso.

         25  371- A, that one is introduced by Chairperson
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          2  Stewart.  Reso. 568 is introduced by myself and a

          3  number of other Council members.

          4                 I first just want to make an opening

          5  statement on Reso. 568.  That Reso. Speaks to the

          6  pending regulations of the United States Department

          7  of Health and Human Services is considering.  And

          8  they have not, yet, made a decision on whether they

          9  are going to implement those regulations, so this

         10  hearing is very timely.  Some of you might feel a

         11  little bit like deja vu all over again, because

         12  these regulations were originally proposed in bill

         13  and in legislation form, when that failed the Bush

         14  Administration remained so committed to the idea

         15  that they are now trying to do it through this

         16  format.

         17                 And basically, the regulations would

         18  require that hospitals check and report the

         19  immigration status of everyone who comes to the

         20  hospital.  And if a hospital decides they are not

         21  going to do this, actually reverse it, to continue

         22  to get federal funding, a hospital must engage in

         23  this type of police harassing behavior of people in

         24  need of medical care.  And I hope and believe that

         25  when the Council sends this, passes this resolution
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          2  we will send the message that we are not going to

          3  tolerate the Bush Administration's anti- immigrant

          4  agenda, and not going to let it erode immigrants

          5  ability to get health care in this City.

          6                 I am very, very happy and proud to

          7  say that our Health and Hospitals Corporation, as

          8  has the Public Health Hospital Association of the

          9  United States, has said that they are not going to

         10  do this.  And HHC has said that there is not an

         11  amount of money that it is worth doing that for.

         12                 And we want to, also, today, as much

         13  as we can through the media, send the message to

         14  immigrants and people of color throughout this City

         15  that HHC is not participating in this hateful

         16  policy, even if it becomes a regulation, and if that

         17  means they have to turn away millions of dollars,

         18  that is their position. And we should all be very,

         19  very grateful and proud of HHC for taking this very

         20  principal position.

         21                 You know, that said, we have a great

         22  deal of work still to do as it relates to reducing

         23  barriers to health care for immigrants in this City.

         24    One of the most challenging issues is the issue of

         25  language access.  And the issue of whether care is
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          2  available to New Yorkers in their language of origin

          3  when they go to a hospital.  And are they able to

          4  discuss their needs with doctors, nurses, and health

          5  care professionals in their own language.  Because

          6  we can imagine how challenging it is to discuss

          7  health care, in general.  And how complicated it can

          8  be to get a doctor or a nurse to know what is wrong

          9  with you.  But if that doctor or nurse is not

         10  speaking to you in your native language, you very

         11  easily could miss information.  And missing

         12  information could mean missing the appropriate

         13  diagnosis, missing the appropriate treatment, and

         14  literally put somebody's life at risk.

         15                 So we hope to explore today what are

         16  the best roads to go down to expand language access

         17  in our public and private hospitals, and in our

         18  clinics in the City.  And I hope today's hearing on

         19  both the issue of language access and cultural

         20  competency, and other barriers to immigrant health

         21  care will lay out a road map of action steps that

         22  we, in both of the Committees, and through the

         23  budget process can take over the next year.  So we

         24  can look back 12 months from now and say, there were

         25  these barriers when we addressed this issue in
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          2  September of 2004, and we have successfully taken

          3  steps, not to eliminate them, I am not quite that

          4  optimistic, but to reduce them and make it so more

          5  immigrants could get the care they needed in as easy

          6  and timely a fashion as possible.

          7                 I am going to turn the mic over to my

          8  Chair of this Committee, who is also a member of the

          9  Health Committee, and kind of the perfect Chair for

         10  the Committee and for this hearing, since he is

         11  also, as we like to call him, Doctor Council Member

         12  Kendall Stewart.  And yesterday we had a little

         13  health incident in the Council balcony, and I was, I

         14  ran upstairs to help the person, which means my full

         15  medical training is, why don't you sit down and try

         16  to breathe more slowly, and can someone get me

         17  water.  So I was very happy when Kendall appeared in

         18  the balcony, and said to the woman, Oh, he is really

         19  a doctor, and handed him over.

         20                 So, Council Member Chair Kendall

         21  Stewart.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Thank you.

         23  Good morning, and thank you for coming to this

         24  important, joint hearing on addressing the

         25  challenges we face to improving the health of
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          2  immigrants throughout our City.

          3                 As Chair of the Immigration

          4  Committee, I first want to thank Council Member

          5  Christine Quinn, Chair of the Health Committee, and

          6  the members of the Health Committee for focusing on

          7  immigration and immigrant health, and holding this

          8  hearing.  I also want to thank the fellow

          9  Immigration Committee members for being here today,

         10  and to welcome Jimmy Yan from the Mayor's Office on

         11  Immigrants Affairs, who will be providing testimony

         12  at today's hearing.  Thank you for coming.

         13                 Nearly two- thirds of New Yorkers are

         14  immigrants or the children of immigrants.  Many

         15  speak a language other than English at home.  All

         16  too often language barriers undermine access to, and

         17  quality of medical care, for a non- English

         18  speakers.

         19                      Resolution 371- A urges the

         20  passage of Senate Bill 5161- B, which will require

         21  hospitals to provide patient language assistant

         22  services for the communication of clinical and other

         23  information, and has many strong supports.  In

         24  addition, an individual's immigration status should

         25  not determine whether or not he or she receives
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          2  necessary medical care.  I strongly oppose efforts

          3  by the Federal Administration to deny a hospital's

          4  reimbursement for services provided to undocumented

          5  immigrants, unless they act as immigrant enforcement

          6  agents.

          7                 And ask patients seeking emergency

          8  medical care about their immigration status.  I

          9  cannot emphasize enough how important accessible

         10  medical care for all City residents is to the safety

         11  and prosperity of the City.  I look forward to

         12  testimony that will help us understand health

         13  barriers that immigrants face so that we can work

         14  together towards eliminating all of them.

         15                 I have always said throughout my

         16  district and throughout the City, that just because

         17  we all have, now have our citizenship, we can now

         18  vote, we have all the privileges, this Country, this

         19  City, was built on immigration, immigrants - - This

         20  Country was built on immigrants, and we feel that

         21  just because we have our citizenship and all of

         22  that, and we have all the privileges, that does not

         23  mean that we should forget those who have just

         24  arrived.

         25                 And so with that in mind, we expect
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          2  to treat them with dignity and not with fear.  And I

          3  believe if we do that, we will continue the legacy

          4  of building this Country with immigrants.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  We

          7  have also been joined by Council Member Helen Sears

          8  of Queens, a member of the Health Committee.

          9                 And we are going to call up our first

         10  panel, which is going to include, Jimmy Yan, the

         11  General Counsel of the Mayor's Office of Immigrant

         12  Affairs; Karen Scott- Collins, Deputy Chief Medical

         13  Office for Health Care Quality and Clinical Services

         14  at the Health and Hospitals Corporation; and I

         15  believe a member of the staff from the Department of

         16  Health and Mental Hygiene, is going to be great, be

         17  at the witness stand, not to deliver testimony, but

         18  to answer any questions folks have.  So if those

         19  three folks could head up, that would be great.

         20                 MR. YAN:  Good morning, members of

         21  the Immigration Health Committees, Chairperson Quinn

         22  and Chairman Stewart.  My name is Jimmy Yan, I am

         23  General Counsel with the Mayor's Office of Immigrant

         24  Affairs, and thank you for the opportunity to

         25  testify.
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          2                 Mayor Bloomberg has made immigrant

          3  access she to City services and health care services

          4  a top priority.  Last year, the Mayor signed

          5  Executive order 41, establishing the most

          6  comprehensive privacy policy in the history of New

          7  York City.

          8                 The Executive order protects

          9  immigrants and all New Yorkers seeking essential

         10  services from the City in two major ways. First, for

         11  the first time in this City's history, a "don't ask"

         12  policy is established that prohibits City employees

         13  from inquiring about a person's immigration status,

         14  among other things, except in limited circumstances.

         15                 Second, the Order adds an important

         16   "don't tell" policy that prohibits City employees

         17  ROM disclosing a person's immigration status and a

         18  range of other confidential information to any

         19  person.  It also carves out common- sense exceptions

         20  to that rule --  for example, when disclosure is

         21  required by law, or when it is necessary for the

         22  City to do its job.

         23                 The Executive Order was the result of

         24  a cooperative effort between this Administration,

         25  the City Council, and a number of immigrant advocacy
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          2  groups.  In sum, it seeks to enable all law abiding

          3  New Yorkers to come forward without fear or

          4  apprehension and available themselves of the

          5  services that keep us all healthy, safe, and

          6  prosperous.

          7                 The Bloomberg Administration takes

          8  implementation of the Executive order very seriously

          9  and delegated to the Mayor's Office of Immigrant

         10  Affairs to work with City agencies to ensure strict

         11  compliance and understanding of Executive Order 41.

         12  The Office of Immigrant Affairs has worked closely

         13  with each agency in developing policies to implement

         14  the Executive Order.  In doing so our office is

         15  emphasizing a number of essential elements of

         16  implementation.

         17                 First, we ensure that all agency

         18  employees are informed of the Executive Order and

         19  receive copies of the policy. We work with the

         20  agencies to see that provide employees with

         21  appropriate training on the policy.

         22                 In addition, we seek to ensure that

         23  agency employees understand the purpose of the

         24  Executive Order, which is to make all appropriate

         25  services and programs accessible to all individuals
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          2  regardless of immigration status, and prevent any

          3  unnecessary deterrents to access.  We emphasize the

          4  employees should demonstrate sensitivity to the

          5  position of immigrants who maybe undocumented and in

          6  need of services.  For example, we advise agencies

          7  to instruct employees that when it is legally

          8  necessary to inquire about immigration status to

          9  explain the purpose of the inquiry.  We also

         10  emphasize the complexity of immigration status, and

         11  the difficulty of determining individual status

         12  without proper immigration expertise.

         13                 Furthermore, we ensure that

         14  violations of the policy are subject to the same

         15  disciplinary actions as other violations of agency

         16  and City policy.  This could include up to

         17  termination of employment.  In many cases,

         18  individual agency policy calls for the Mayor's

         19  Office of Immigrant Affairs to make recommendations

         20  for appropriate disciplinary action.

         21                 In addition of working with agencies

         22  to ensure effective implementation, we have

         23  conducted community education efforts to inform

         24  immigrant communities about the new policy.  Our

         25  office has created multi- lingual handouts in six
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          2  different languages, English, Spanish, Chinese,

          3  Russian, Urdu, and Korean. We are looking forward to

          4  creating translations into more languages.  We post

          5  these materials on our Web site, which is

          6  www.NYC.gov/immigrants, and distribute them at a

          7  wide range of community events, fairs, and meetings.

          8    We make presentations before community Leaders,

          9  members, and organizations around the City to

         10  explain and answer questions about the policy.  We

         11  also highlight Executive Order 41 on the homepage of

         12  Web site, and post a copy of the order on the site.

         13  We are continuing our outreach efforts and seeking

         14  additional ways of informing communities of the

         15  Executive Order recognizing that this is ongoing

         16  public and community education campaign.

         17                 As HHC will testify, Mayor Bloomberg

         18  is strongly opposed to the recent Centers of

         19  Medicare and Medicaid Services proposal under

         20  Section 1011 of the Medicare Modernization Act that

         21  would condition reimbursement of emergency health

         22  care costs on asking patients about their

         23  immigration status.  Such a policy would go directly

         24  against the provisions, purpose, and spirit of

         25  Executive Order 41 to remove apprehension in
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          2  immigrants accessing critical City services.

          3                 To ensure immigrant access to health

          4  care services, we have also worked and continue to

          5  work with the Health and Hospitals Corporation, and

          6  the Department of Health and Mental Hygiene on

          7  strengthening access to health and human services

          8  for limited English proficient individuals.

          9                 Indeed, the Bloomberg Administration

         10  and its agencies are dedicated to providing medical

         11  and health care services without regard to

         12  immigration status and language barriers.  The

         13  Office of Immigrant Affairs will continue to work

         14  with these agencies to ensure equal access in health

         15  care, and we look forward to working with the City

         16  Council on these important issues.

         17                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         18  testify, and I am happy to answer any questions.

         19                 DR. SCOTT-COLLINS:  Good morning,

         20  members of the Committees.  My name is Dr. Karen

         21  Scott- Collins.  I am the Deputy Chief Medical

         22  Officer for Health Care Quality and Clinical

         23  Services at the New York City Health and Hospitals

         24  Corporation.  I am pleased to have the opportunity

         25  to provide testimony this morning on HHC's efforts
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          2  to enhance immigrants' access to health care.

          3                 The 1.2 million patients who receive

          4  health care at HHC facilities belong to one of the

          5  many different ethnic groups, speak a myriad of

          6  different languages, and come from the different

          7  cultures that comprise New York City.  Seven percent

          8  of our patients are Asian, 35 percent Black, 43

          9  percent Hispanic, 6 percent are White, and the

         10  remaining 9 percent come from other mixed- racial

         11  backgrounds.  The ethnic groups represented include

         12  African- Americans, West Indians, French, Dutch, or

         13  English descent, Hispanics from Puerto Rico, Central

         14  and South America, as well as parts of the

         15  Caribbean, Asians including people from India,

         16  Pakistan, China, and Korea, Africans and people from

         17  the Middle East and Europe.  The public hospital

         18  system strives to provide high- quality health care

         19  services in a linguistic and culturally appropriate

         20  manner to this diverse patient population.

         21                 I would like to highlight four areas,

         22  which HHC has given priority.  These are:

         23                 Enhancing our language access

         24  services;

         25                 Supporting a culturally competent
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          2  workforce;

          3                 Maximizing the enrollment of

          4  uninsured patients into public health insurance

          5  programs;

          6                 Engaging in advocacy at all levels of

          7  government;

          8                 A Limited English Proficient

          9  individual is a person who does not speak English as

         10  his or her primary language, and who has limited

         11  ability to read, write, or understand English at a

         12  level that permits a meaningful interaction with

         13  health care providers and social service agencies.

         14  Addressing this barrier is directly related to HHC's

         15  goals of providing quality health care and ensuring

         16  patient safety.  According to an analysis of U.S.

         17  Census Bureau data,  slightly more than one- half of

         18  the adult population in communities served by HHC

         19  speaks a language other than English at home.  The

         20  most prevalent languages other than English include:

         21  Bengali, Chinese, French, Haitian Creole, Hindi,

         22  Korean, Polish, Russian, Spanish, and Urdu.  HHC's

         23  corporate wide initiatives to address persons with

         24  LEP include:

         25                 Installing appropriate signage
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          2  throughout our facilities;

          3                 Expanding our interpreter capacity;

          4                 Translation of written materials;

          5  and,

          6                 Designation facility coordinators

          7  responsible for the provision of LEP services;

          8                 Installation of appropriate signage

          9  in multiple languages within HHC facilities has been

         10  a priority.  The purpose of the signage is to inform

         11  HHC's patients that interpreter services are

         12  available, free of charge, as well as to guide them

         13  to the appropriate locations around the facilities.

         14  I have included a copy of the free interpreter

         15  services' signage along with the testimony.

         16                 Expanding interpreter capacity is an

         17  ongoing process for all of our health care

         18  facilities, and it is particularly challenging given

         19  the demographic changes that occur and the resources

         20  required.  Interpreter services refer to both in-

         21  person interpreters, as well as the use of

         22  telephonic services.  The in person interpreters are

         23  both HHC's staff and volunteers who are trained in

         24  conducting medical interpretation to provide

         25  consistent, accurate medical interpretation in a
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          2  professional manner.  HHC has initiated a standard

          3  process for assessing the language skills of

          4  bilingual staff and volunteers, and offering

          5  training in medical interpretation through

          6  nationally recognized leaders in the field,

          7  including the Center for Immigrant Health here in

          8  New York, and the Cross Cultural Health Care

          9  program.  Medical interpretation includes learning

         10  the skills and ethics of interpreting, as well as

         11  the medical terminology and cultural influences on

         12  health and health care.  Telephonic services are

         13  used for languages not covered by in- person

         14  interpreters, or if the patient is uncomfortable

         15  having a third person in the room.  These services

         16  are also available on a 24- hour day basis.

         17                 We also continue to test creative

         18  approaches to addressing the language needs of our

         19  patients.  For example, in 2001, Gouverneur

         20  Healthcare Services was a semifinalist for the

         21  Innovations in American Government Award Program of

         22  the Kennedy School of Government at Harvard for the

         23  technology Enhanced Medical Interpretation System,

         24  this is often known as TEMIS.  TEMIS provides

         25  quality- controlled, remote simultaneous
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          2  interpretation services.  Roughly half of the

          3  patients at Gouverneur require interpreter services.

          4                 With TEMIS the patients and medical

          5  staff wear wireless headsets and hear simultaneous

          6  translations provided by a translator trained in

          7  medical technology, medical terminology. TEMIS is

          8  currently in operation at Gouverneur and Bellevue

          9  Hospital Center, and we are seeking sources of

         10  funding to expand this program to other parts of our

         11  system.

         12                 The third component of HHC's LEP

         13  efforts is the translation of written materials.

         14  Materials, such as informed consent forms, patient

         15  instructions, and education materials have been

         16  translated into the languages most spoken by our

         17  patients, Spanish, Chinese, Russian, Polish, French,

         18  Haitian Creole, Korean, Urdu, Bengali, and Hindi.

         19  Along with English, these languages represent

         20  approximately 92 percent of our communities.  The

         21  remaining 8 percent is comprised of another 25

         22  different languages. Last fall, we launched an LEP

         23  Web site at our Internet address on which all of the

         24  key documents, such as informed consents, patient

         25  instructions, and educational material, as well as
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          2  links to additional patient care information are

          3  provided for staff throughout the corporation, and

          4  available for them to download locally.  And we

          5  continue to add to and build on this site.

          6                 As you can guess, these services

          7  require a significant level of financial support.

          8  We estimate that each facility spends at least one

          9  to two million dollars per year for the combination

         10  of interpreter services, signage, staff training,

         11  translations.  We estimate an additional annual

         12  expenses of more than a million per year for

         13  continuing to develop the Internet site and staff

         14  training.  In total, HHC is spending more than $20

         15  million per year on language access services, yet,

         16  estimates an additional $20 million needed to expand

         17  LEP services to fully address all the needs of all

         18  the HHC's facilities.

         19                 We recognize that being able to speak

         20  a patient's language is very important in the care

         21  delivery process, but it is just one aspect of

         22  culturally competent care.  To this end, HHC staff

         23  receive cultural diversity training to improve their

         24  assessment, diagnostic, treatment and care

         25  management skills in order to more effectively work
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          2  with patients from different cultures.

          3                 HHC serves a very diverse population.

          4    While such diversity presents monumental service

          5  delivery challenges, HHC has made a long- term

          6  commitment to provide culturally competent services.

          7  This organizational commitment requires an awareness

          8  of the needs of our patients, and implementation of

          9  evidence- base interventions that effectively

         10  address identified needs.  In addition, continuous

         11  assessment of the cultural competency of our

         12  workforce, evaluation of the effectiveness of our

         13  diversity training program, and formal and informal

         14  linkages with communities that our facilities serve,

         15  are essential.

         16                 The following fundamental principles

         17  guide HHC's efforts to provide culturally competent

         18  health and mental hygiene services:

         19                 First, an understanding of the

         20  important role of culture, race, class, age and

         21  gender in interpersonal and professional encounters,

         22  especially in health care delivery;

         23                 Secondly, and understanding of the

         24  historical and current factors that impact the

         25  health and mental health of ethnic and racial
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          2  minority populations, such as racism, immigration

          3  patterns, and human rights' violations.

          4                 And thirdly, the need for

          5  collaboration with natural, informal support and

          6  helping networks within ethnic and racial minority

          7  communities.  For example, working with neighborhood

          8  organization, faith- based organizations, spiritual

          9  leaders, healers, families, and advocacy groups to

         10  ensure appropriate responses to individual health

         11  care needs.

         12                 Another barrier to accessing health

         13  care services is the lack of health insurance

         14  coverage.  HHC is committed to helping all patients

         15  regardless of income, resources, or immigration

         16  status to apply for health insurance coverage.

         17  HHC's President, Dr. Benjamin K. Chu, has testified

         18  several times before the Council on the imperative

         19  of enrolling eligible persons in Medicaid, Child

         20  Health Plus, or Family Health Plus.  He noted that

         21  enrollment into these programs is vital to the

         22  health and well being of New Yorkers, as well as the

         23  financial viability of the public hospitals.

         24                 Most children in New York State,

         25  regardless of their immigration status are eligible

                                                            24

          1  HEALTH AND IMMIGRATION

          2  for Child Health Plus A, or Child Health Plus B.  In

          3  addition, pregnant women and some adults are

          4  eligible for Medicaid, if they meet other program

          5  requirements. Undocumented adults are not eligible

          6  for Family Health Plus. However, every HHC patient

          7  with income below 400 percent of the federal poverty

          8  level is eligible for financial assistance to

          9  support the cost of their care, regardless of their

         10  immigration status, through the recently updated HHC

         11  fee scale policy.  This is called the HHC Options

         12  Program.  However, ineligibility for one of the

         13  public health insurance programs should not be an

         14  impediment to New Yorkers accessing health care.

         15                 The HHC Options program is not an

         16  insurance product. It is a financial assistance

         17  program that reduces the patient's bill to an

         18  affordable level.  A patient may qualify for HHC

         19  Options and not qualify for Medicaid, Child Health

         20  Plus, or Family Health Plus because of their income

         21  or immigration status.

         22                 One of the fears we are told that

         23  many undocumented immigrants experience is the

         24  disclosure of their status to a law enforcement or

         25  immigration agency.  In the normal course of
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          2  determining whether or not someone is eligible for

          3  Medicaid, Child Health Plus, or Family Health Plus,

          4  patients are asked to provide our financial

          5  counselors with information about their immigration

          6  status.  This information is relevant to

          7  determination of a patient's eligibility for the

          8  public insurance programs.  It is HHC's policy that

          9  no information provided in confidence during the

         10  financial screening process will ever be disclosed

         11  to a law enforcement or immigration agency.  Dr. Chu

         12  sent a letter last year to all employees concerning

         13  this topic.  The letter stated in part:

         14                  "To be clear, it remains the strict

         15  policy of HHC that all information related to a

         16  patient's immigration status obtained by an HHC

         17  employee during the course of his or her duties may

         18  not be disclosed to a third party.  As in the past,

         19  any violations of this confidentiality policy will

         20  subject an employee to appropriate disciplinary

         21  action, including possible termination of

         22  employment."  It also states, "As the primary safety

         23  net provider network for our City's diverse

         24  immigrant communities, we will do everything we can

         25  to reassure our immigrant patients that HHC will
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          2  continue to honor its longstanding pledges of

          3  confidentiality on this sensitive issue."

          4                 HHC has also engaged in advocacy

          5  efforts at the State and Federal government to

          6  remove barriers to care or prevent the enactment of

          7  laws that would impede immigrants access to health

          8  services.  In Albany, legislation introduced by

          9  Assemblyman Dick Gottfried as A8049, and Senator

         10  Olga Mendez as S3352, at the request of HHC, would

         11  provide Medicaid reimbursement for translation

         12  services to patients with limited English

         13  proficiency.

         14                 Federal and state laws and

         15  regulations require health care providers to make

         16  language assistant services available to their

         17  patients with limited English proficiency.  HHC

         18  believes that language access is intrinsic to

         19  quality health care service delivery.  We believe

         20  that this is the underlying basis for the Assembly

         21  and Senate bills, A5431B/S5161B.  However, while

         22  recognizing the importance of the availability of

         23  interpreter services, these bills do not provide

         24  funding that would aid hospitals and health care

         25  facilities in achieving LEP compliance. Federal
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          2  matching funds are available to states that opt to

          3  provide reimbursement for these services under

          4  Medicaid.  Several states have already established

          5  mechanisms to obtain federal matching funds for

          6  language assistance services.  A8049/S3352 would

          7  enable New York to take advantage of these federal

          8  Medicaid funds for the provision of language

          9  assistance to LEP patients.

         10                 In Washington, D.C., HHC's federal

         11  advocacy efforts have included support for

         12  increasing health care access for immigrants.  In

         13  coordination with the Mayor's New York City Office

         14  in Washington, D.C. And various hospital trade

         15  organization, of which we are members, including

         16  National Association of Public Hospitals, and the

         17  Greater New York Hospital Association, HHC is a

         18  strong voice on behalf of immigrant health and care

         19  access.  As an example, HHC actively lobbied for

         20  inclusion of funds to reimburse health care

         21  providers for emergency care, given to undocumented

         22  immigrants in the Medicare Modernization Act, which

         23  became law this past December.  The Medicaid

         24  Modernization Act also include major restorations in

         25  the Disproportionate Share Hospital Program for New
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          2  York State, totalling up to $178 million in Fiscal

          3  Year 2004, which could mean an additional $30

          4  million a year in monies for HHC.  The DSH program

          5  is designed to reimburse health care providers for

          6  uncompensated care given to low- income and indigent

          7  patients.  A large proportion of our uncompensated

          8  care costs are the result of serving the immigrant

          9  population, as many new arrivals to the US are

         10  unlikely to have health care coverage.

         11                 HHC and others have also been

         12  vigorous in trying to roll back the infamous five-

         13  year Federal Medicaid Rule for Immigrants.  Under

         14  New York State Law, legal immigrants are

         15  automatically Medicaid eligible.  However, New York

         16  State does not receive federal matched funds for

         17  Medicaid benefits granted to New York immigrants who

         18  are in the US for less than five years.

         19  Unfortunately, in the current Congress, this is a

         20  difficult fight.

         21                 Currently, HHC is extremely concerned

         22  about CMS' proposed implementation of the $1 billion

         23  in funding that Section 1011 of the Medicaid

         24  Modernization set aside for the reimbursement of

         25  emergency health care cost of undocumented
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          2  immigrants.  The current proposal includes the

          3  requirements that providers in exchange for

          4  receiving Section 1011 funds query patients about

          5  their immigrations status.

          6                 In HHC's comment letter to CMS it was

          7  made clear that the Corporation would not

          8  participate in the program, if this odious

          9  requirement stands.  Mayor Bloomberg has also spoken

         10  out forcefully against this proposal.

         11                 It should be noted that attempts in

         12  Congress to legislate reporting of immigration

         13  status in exchange for Section 1011 funds have

         14  failed.  H.R. 3722, the Undocumented Alien Emergency

         15  Medical Assistance Amendments of 2004, introduced a

         16  Congressman Dana Rohrabacher R- CA was only

         17  supported by 88 members when acted on this summer.

         18  Nevertheless, CMS is attempting to implement this

         19  through the regulatory process.

         20                 HHC has been working closely with the

         21  Mayor's office, immigrant groups, hospital

         22  associations, and our congressional delegation on

         23  this important issue.  We welcome your support in

         24  the call for CMS to withdraw the requirement that

         25  providers query patients on immigration status in
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          2  order to receive Section 1011 funds.  However, it is

          3  also imperative that you help us spread the word

          4  that HHC will not violate its trust or relationship

          5  with its patients in anyway and to highlight that

          6  HHC will not participate in any program that

          7  requires us to collect immigration status data.

          8                 I thank you for the opportunity to

          9  provide testimony, I would be happy to answer any

         10  questions that you may have.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I want to say we

         12  have also been joined by Council Member Lew Fidler

         13  of Brooklyn, who is a member of the Immigrant

         14  Affairs Committee.

         15                 If the federal regulations go

         16  through, is it your testimony, but I just want to

         17  reiterate it, how much money could, potentially, HHC

         18  not receive or lose because of this?

         19                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  The amount is

         20  estimated about $4 million that would not come other

         21  the public hospitals here in New York.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Which is, I mean,

         23  I think it is important for all of us in government

         24  and the public to note that. Because, although, you

         25  know, it is not a massive amount in comparison to
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          2  the rest of HHC's budget, it is important to note

          3  that HHC still has a fairly sizable operating

          4  deficit.  So the step that HHC is taking in not

          5  doing this, and the treatment of the federal

          6  government of HHC is a real punishment for our

          7  public hospitals, because that is $4 million, if we

          8  had had it, it would have taken part of the deficit

          9  and erased it.

         10                 Can you give me, it might any of you

         11  could answer this, some information about what steps

         12  the Administration is taking in D.C. To try to

         13  prevent these regulations from going into effect?  I

         14  mean, I know that HHC has said that they are not

         15  going to do it, and that is a very powerful and

         16  strong statement.  But I want to know what steps are

         17  being taken directly with the Secretary and with the

         18  White House to try and prevent this from going into

         19  effect?

         20                 MR. YAN:  Well, we will probably have

         21  to get back to you with the exact steps we are

         22  taking.  We have a Washington, D.C. Office, as you

         23  know, that is, that takes all the necessary steps of

         24  advocacy to support or oppose policy, the positions

         25  that the Mayor takes.  So that may be something that
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          2  we will have to get back to with some detail on.

          3  Judy Chesser heads up our D.C. Office, and Bill

          4  Daily, and they are very strong advocates on this

          5  issue.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Yes, I would

          7  really like some specifics.  We were actually down

          8  in D.C. Last week, the Council, you know,

          9  delegation.  And one of your lobbyist was at our

         10  breakfast.  I did not speak extensively with her, I

         11  am not sure to what degree she raised it with other

         12  Council members.  But you know, I would like to know

         13  what specific steps are being taken, because there

         14  is opposition and there is opposition.  And do you

         15  know whether the Bloomberg Administration has met

         16  with the Secretary or their office?

         17                 MR. YAN:  I do not know that right

         18  now.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Do you know if

         20  any of the discussions, do you know if when one or

         21  two Republicans visited last month this issue came

         22  up in any of the meetings that may have occurred or

         23  sit downs that may have occurred when we had the

         24  Republican Leadership and we hosted them?

         25                 MR. YAN:  We have talked to the D.C.
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          2  Office about conveying the message as broadly as

          3  possible in D.C.  And HHC has been working with them

          4  as well.  But I would have to get back to -

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  But do you know

          6  if when we had the Republican Convention, we used

          7  that opportunity to try to compel the Bush

          8  Administration not to do this?  It seems like it

          9  might have been a great opportunity to take some of

         10  the National Republican Leaders to our outstanding

         11  public hospitals so that they could see exactly the

         12  institutions, and exactly the patients that they

         13  were penalizing by this, sort of take it out of the

         14  abstract and make it, you know, very personal.  I

         15  would think, or I would hope, it would be harder for

         16  a Bush Administration Official to do this after they

         17  met the wonderful doctors and nurses, and orderlies

         18  and technicians at our HHC facilities.  Do you know

         19  if that opportunity was, or whether that happened,

         20  whether we did that at all?

         21                 MR. YAN:  I am not sure if that

         22  happened, but we are taking vigorous steps.  We are

         23  in a vigorous position against this policy.  And we

         24  will definitely have to get back to you on that. And

         25  we would welcome any suggestions that you would have
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          2  for advocacy and outreach to important other elected

          3  officials or people in the Bush Administration.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Well I would

          5  suggest, well, I will give you a couple:

          6                 1.  I would suggest that the Mayor

          7  call the HHS Secretary.

          8                 2.  I would suggest that the Mayor go

          9  down, and I am sure we could get the Speaker to go

         10  with him to D.C. And meet with the HHS Secretary

         11  about this issue.

         12                 3.  I would suggest that the Mayor

         13  use his position as the largest, or like second to

         14  largest, or whatever, donor to the Republican

         15  National Committee as an additional wedge to try to

         16  prevent this position from happening.

         17                 4.  I would suggest that we would ask

         18  a delegation from the entities in federal government

         19  that are considering this to come to New York and to

         20  tour our HHC facilities with the Council, with

         21  advocates for immigrant health care with Congress

         22  people.  So that we could take them right to the

         23  places that will be put in peril by this action.

         24                 To start, but I will send you more.

         25                 MR. YAN:  Okay.

                                                            35

          1  HEALTH AND IMMIGRATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Kendall, do you

          3  have some questions, and then I will come back.  And

          4  we have other members of questions, as well.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  We do

          6  understand that HHC and the policies that is now

          7  being instituted, and also the Executive 41; we

          8  understand all of that.  But, what about the private

          9  institutions, in light of the fact that they are

         10  being threatened with denying the reimbursement and

         11  all of that, what has been done by the Mayor's

         12  Office in terms of encouraging them to follow suit

         13  like HHC institutions?

         14                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  I cannot speak

         15  for the private institutions, we work closely with.

         16                 I'M sorry?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Could you use the

         18  microphone, is it on?

         19                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  Hello, yes.  At

         20  the National level HHC has worked closely with the

         21  American Hospital Association, the Hospital

         22  Association of Greater New York, regarding the

         23  importance of immigrant access and the onerous

         24  requirements around the Section 1011, and the

         25  Medicare Modernization Act.  So from HHC's
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          2  perspective our work, the advocacy work has included

          3  building and working closely in making sure that a

          4  broader set of hospitals are part of this advocacy

          5  and understanding the issues before us.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Mr. Yan, do you

          7  know from these institutions, these private

          8  institutions are really following through as HHC, in

          9  terms of the policies?

         10                 MR. YAN:  Well because the private

         11  institutions are not under the City's direct

         12  jurisdiction, I do not have complete knowledge about

         13  that.  But that is something that I would be happy

         14  to take back to my Commissioner, and ultimately the

         15  Mayor, about seeing whether we can weigh- in with

         16  those groups to promote this principle of equal

         17  access.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  All right,

         19  because I did not want to take it for granted that

         20  they would be doing it.  We want to encourage them

         21  to follow the policies.

         22                 My next question, basically, has to

         23  do with Home Land Security.  We know what the

         24  Executive Order says, and what the Mayor wants

         25  agency policy to be.  However, if Home Land Security
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          2  requests the file from the institution, what happens

          3  then?

          4                 MR. YAN:  Well, as far as we know

          5  that has never happened.  And we would have to look

          6  at a specific situation if there is a strong legal

          7  requirement behind, a necessity behind a certain

          8  type of disclosure.  Then we would not want to, you

          9  know, violate any laws.  But we would look carefully

         10  at these situations in the context of the purpose of

         11  Executive Order 41, which is to make services

         12  available and to encourage utilization services.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Well, in light

         14  of that, what is the main purpose for taking

         15  immigration status information when one goes to the

         16  hospital, to HHC, what is the main purpose?

         17                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  The main purpose

         18  is that it is information that we use only as part

         19  of the financial counseling in order to determine

         20  whether someone is eligible for one of the public

         21  health insurances programs.  That is the only use of

         22  the information is to be able to go through those

         23  questions and in the process helping people get as

         24  much access to health care as possible.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:   We will first
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          2  call on Council Member Sears, did you have a

          3  question?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Actually, yes,

          5  I do.  I think, first of all, I should say that if

          6  you move all of us to do everything that we can,

          7  that this really is not implemented. Because I

          8  certainly represent a district that Elmhurst

          9  Hospital sits in, and it is the most diverse in the

         10  country.

         11                 My question is, and I am well aware

         12  of what HHC does, and I have a great affinity for

         13  them, because I think you are a remarkable

         14  institution, and recognize the things that need to

         15  be done to address the health care issues.  And I

         16  know we are in an age of technology, but once again,

         17  I choose to reminded you that we are talking about a

         18  population that is very, very limited in English.

         19  And I continually hear about having to go to a Web

         20  site.

         21                 Now those children and those families

         22  have access to a computer in the school, they do not

         23  and their parents do not.  So my question to you is,

         24  does HHC develop a linkage with other public

         25  institutions, such as the local libraries where
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          2  these children can assist their parents?  And

          3  believe me they are, the libraries in my district

          4  are used and throughout the City, so I would like to

          5  be global when I sit here, and not just talk about

          6  my district.  Those libraries are used extensively.

          7  And one of the problems I really encounter a great

          8  deal is that people are constantly advised to go to

          9  the Web site, go to the Web site, go to the Web

         10  site, and it is pushing aside the population that

         11  you are addressing.

         12                 So does HHC have a linkage where

         13  someone in the local library can pull up what you

         14  are talking about, the policies that you have,

         15  applications that they may pull off, do you?

         16                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  Let me clarify

         17  and answer your question.  Firstly, for the Internet

         18  site that I described is, the first step in it has

         19  been to develop the site so that all of our facility

         20  staff, our clinical staff have access to a full

         21  range of materials that we know have been translated

         22  in a high quality and standardized manner.  Those

         23  are materials that we expect staff to print, and

         24  then use with patients in a more one- on- one, face-

         25  to face interactions, as well as ones that can go
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          2  home to families and patients.

          3                 The next step, as you are describing

          4  is that we, it is in progress, and that is to take

          5  sections of that Internet site and also make it

          6  available on an Internet site, so linkages or

          7  accessing it from public libraries, from schools, as

          8  well as from homes, and in any location, would be

          9  possible.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  But is that

         11  something that you are working now?

         12                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  We are, we are.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Because one of

         14  the difficult things is the outreach that HHC has is

         15  getting people, to one, to recognize that there is

         16  insurance out there for them.  And that they do not

         17  have to be afraid of filling in applications to do

         18  that.  And secondly, what is available to them in

         19  health care, before the health and disease in these

         20  communities are rising enormously in communicable

         21  diseases.  And there is a lapse in reaching out to

         22  the populations, all populations that need to have

         23  those services.

         24                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  We are actively

         25  working on the Internet, on taking the LEP material
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          2  to an Internet site so that it would be available

          3  more abundantly.  And also available to

          4  organizations in the communities that can help us in

          5  further disseminating the information and helping

          6  with some of the outreach.  We actually are also

          7  partnering on a proposal to the Office of Minority

          8  Health with the Immigration Coalition to work on the

          9  outreach piece.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Does HHC meet

         11  with the community of librarians in the Borough of

         12  Queens, in the City of New York, and you would take

         13  each Borough so that they are very much aware of

         14  what you are doing?

         15                 I realize I am asking you questions

         16  that may not be within your particular purview,

         17  because there is a such of command as to how things

         18  are done.

         19                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  And a lot of the

         20  activities certainly happens at the network or local

         21  level.  I know that the Queens network has been

         22  particularly active and has a really strong

         23  relationship with the public libraries in Queens,

         24  and have really been kind of leaders in the

         25  Corporation in forging some of those partnerships,
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          2  and modeling some of those partnerships.  So we can

          3  certainly take those to other parts of the

          4  Corporation.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Maybe, Madam

          6  Chair, that is something that the Committee could

          7  really do outreach to the Boroughs in the City of

          8  New York, to see that we do that.

          9                 One last question, is one of the

         10  problems also, in communicating with patients is

         11  how, what are you doing to really try and expand the

         12  professional care, or the professional labor that

         13  comes into the market?  Because there is a limit as

         14  to who is out there speaking what language and what

         15  they are studying.

         16                 Is HHC doing, and I know they did it

         17  one time, and that is why I asked that, because

         18  there was a limit as to the doctors, to the nursing

         19  staff, it seemed like they were not working in the

         20  HHC hospitals, or they were not studying those

         21  particular -

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Could you just

         23  give me one second, that is a fire drill the

         24  building is doing.  We should all just ignore it, we

         25  told them we are not participating, which they are
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          2  fine with.  So just ignore it.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you.

          4  You know I did not even hear it, Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  You know we

          6  probably should just stand in recess for two or

          7  three minutes, because the Sergeant said the

          8  announcements are going to keep going, so why don't

          9  you think about the answer you can give to that very

         10  important question.  So we will just be in recess

         11  for two or three minutes.

         12                 (Recess taken.)

         13                 We are ready to continue the hearing,

         14  and  we were awaiting, anxiously, your response to

         15  Council Member Sears' question.

         16                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  The question I

         17  think about developing our diverse workforce,

         18  particularly in physician and nursing workforce.

         19  And there are still programs around the Corporation,

         20  particularly focusing on nursing as part of our

         21  efforts to address the overall nursing shortage and

         22  the need other develop a pipeline and train more

         23  staff for nursing positions. Certainly, our

         24  attention to the linguistic and cultural needs of

         25  our patients play into, you know, thinking that part
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          2  of the strategy.

          3                 The other thing, you know, I think

          4  that HHC is quite fortunate that we do have a very

          5  diverse health care professional staff, and with our

          6  current focus on, also, identifying staff and

          7  training staff in medical interpretation we are able

          8  to enhance their skills, often giving them real

          9  skills and structure around something they were

         10  doing in an ad hoc way, frankly, before.  And it is

         11  something that they have found very satisfying, it

         12  adds to their job satisfaction and to what they can

         13  contribute to the patient care.  And it certainly

         14  gives us a greater assurance that we are getting,

         15  that we are having a high- quality interpretation.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  All right,

         17  thank you.  Thank you, Chair.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Councilwoman

         19  Palma.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  Good morning.

         21  Jimmy, in relations to federal law, how does

         22  Executive Order 41 take precedent?

         23                 MR. YAN:  I am not sure I fully

         24  understand your question.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  Well, I guess,
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          2  here in the City, I know we have heard in the past,

          3  I mean, they say that that Executive Order 41

          4  supersedes the federal law that this is the law that

          5  is implemented in the City.  And we just, you know,

          6  I just want clarity for myself to make sure that we

          7  are not in violation of any federal law when it

          8  comes to Executive Order 41.

          9                 MR. YAN:  All right, we examined the

         10  legality of Executive Order 41 very closely and

         11  intensely during the development of the policy,

         12  along with the City Council and along with

         13  advocates, and the Legal Aid Society, and we felt

         14  that the final policy that we came up with was in

         15  such a form that it would not violate federal law,

         16  at all, we feel strongly about that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  So is it safe

         18  to say that Executive Order 41 here is the top, the

         19  one we should be following in terms?

         20                 MR. YAN:  Well let's just say that

         21  Executive Order 41 does not violate any federal law.

         22    Normally, in most cases, federal law would

         23  preempt local law depending on the situation. But in

         24  this case, there is no inconsistency in either

         25  federal laws, but they do not conflict with
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          2  Executive Order 41.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  So then what

          4  is the Administration to make sure that Executive

          5  Order 41 is being publicized to City workers, to

          6  police officers, and you know, to immigration

          7  communities?

          8                 MR. YAN:  We have been working with

          9  all the agencies including, and focusing very much

         10  on some, you know, the top agencies that have the

         11  most critical interactions with the public, like

         12  NYPD and the major health and human services

         13  agencies.  And we have worked with them on making

         14  sure that they are implementing Executive Order 41

         15  through their policies and training.  And our office

         16  is doing continuous public community education

         17  efforts in the community.  We have created

         18  multilingual flyers that we pass out at all events,

         19  we go to community affairs, meetings of community

         20  organizations, and that are organized by community

         21  leaders.  We try to get, we work through the CBOs to

         22  try to get them to disseminate information about

         23  Executive Order 41 with social service providers in

         24  a lot of different immigrant communities around the

         25  City.
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          2                 So we are working internally with

          3  City agencies making sure that they incorporate all

          4  of the major elements, not only follow the letter of

          5  the law, but they understand the real spirit and

          6  purpose of the law, which is, you know, we are here

          7  to serve and provide access to everyone.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  Yes, that was

          9  my concern that the City workers, especially law

         10  enforcement agents understand that Executive Order

         11  41 is to make sure that people receive services and

         12  without fear of intimidation.

         13                 MR. YAN:  So we have worked very

         14  closely, especially with NYPD and all of the

         15  agencies, and that collaboration is ongoing,

         16  definitely ongoing.  Because it is not, we

         17  definitely do not see this as a one time thing, we

         18  are going to keep working to make sure that agencies

         19  are continuing their implementation and trainings

         20  and following the law.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  Okay.  Dr.

         22  Collins, you made reference to the TEMIS services

         23  that HHC uses right now in Gouverneur and Bellevue.

         24  Is the availability of translators affected by the

         25  type of amount, or the amount or the type of funding
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          2  that a facility receive?

          3                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  Well all, the

          4  availability of interpreter services are available

          5  throughout all of our facilities.  The types of

          6  interpreter, the mix of types of interpreters

          7  services at each facility does vary.  Sometimes it

          8  varies because a facility is kind of a little bit

          9  further ahead and an innovative of something like

         10  TEMIS.  In some places it varies by the mix of

         11  available, well- trained filing all staff, which is

         12  complemented by the use of other telephone services,

         13  Syracom, New World Language are some of the quality

         14  telephone services to complement interpreter

         15  services.  But at every facility, as is required

         16  through the Office of Civil Rights, interpreter

         17  services are available, and we make it clear that

         18  they are available free of charge to patients.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  Okay, thank

         20  you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Council Member

         22  Clarke.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Thank you,

         24  Madam Chair.  My question has to do with sort of

         25  projecting and looking forward.  We know that
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          2  Executive Order 41 is in place as a safety net for

          3  immigrants in the City of New York, and that is

          4  solely applicable to HHC facilities.  My colleague,

          5  Council Member Stewart asked about the types of

          6  conversations that were taking place with the

          7  private, non- profits in the City of New York.  I

          8  guess my concern would be looking at what, how

          9  fruitful those conversations are, simply because I

         10  can foresee a situation where we end up with, I

         11  guess, two levels of health care in the City of New

         12  York.  One which begins to overburden the Municipal

         13  health care system by essentially, without, you

         14  know, any other reasoning, just all immigrants

         15  essentially finding their way to HHC facilities

         16  knowing that perhaps they regulated institutions do

         17  not feel the same obligations that we feel.  And

         18  that being somewhat of a gap in services, and in

         19  being able to track, you know the quality of health

         20  care, and perhaps compromise to a certain degree the

         21  health care of all citizens.  Because if one is

         22  turned away from a health care facility because an

         23  inappropriate question is asked.  And that person

         24  has a communicable disease, does that person just go

         25  back to the community without getting any care?  And
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          2  how could we avert that just looking forward in

          3  those conversations that are being held?

          4                 Because I understand that those

          5  institutions are not governed by our Executive

          6  Order, but may feel compelled to, based on their own

          7  financial situations have to strictly adhere to

          8  Section 1011.  Have you looked at that and what

          9  looking like two to five years down the line that

         10  could mean for a City such as New York?

         11                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  Just from the

         12  perspective of HHC, HHC certainly is, advocates that

         13  all hospitals participate in terms of providing

         14  access to care for immigrants and for uninsured

         15  populations, as well as the rest of the population.

         16  Where we certainly have always been committed to

         17  doing so, and taking care of everyone who comes

         18  through our doors.  But, I think projecting that in

         19  closing the door to a particular stream of funding,

         20  in this case, we are not only losing that funding,

         21  but potentially increasing our patient population is

         22  essentially kind of a double way that we will be hit

         23  by this.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  So my

         25  question is, do you see a way, or have there been
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          2  any discussions, perhaps, you know, even in the

          3  realm of academia that could help to alleviate what,

          4  you know, can become an unintended consequence of us

          5  having to care for everyone within our City, of

          6  feeling obligated to care for everyone that is

          7  within our City?  And looking at it from a broader

          8  public health perspective, you know, where these

          9  other institutions in terms of mind- set, and what

         10  alternatives we can look at to sort of offset of

         11  what could become a burdening situation for HHC.  Is

         12  there a group or an institution?  You know you

         13  talked about the various associations and the

         14  conversations, but I mean, this really comes down to

         15  a situation that can become extremely burdensome,

         16  not only financially, but can compromise the health

         17  of and well- being of all New Yorkers, if it is not

         18  handled effectively.

         19                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  I mentioned the

         20  letter and you have attached the letter that Dr. Chu

         21  sent to CMS and some of those very same points were

         22  highlighted by Dr. Chu in the letter.  So the

         23  greater impact than just the direct funding tied to

         24  the Medicare Modernization Act.  And so that is part

         25  of HHC's larger advocacy role as you mentioned, with
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          2  CMS and with hospitals.  Hospitals who do not serve

          3  a predominantly public population are more likely to

          4  be tied to what is in a Medicare funding bill.  So

          5  that is an important route for us.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Just so that my

          7  colleagues know, we are expecting, later on in the

          8  hearing, a representative from the Greater New York

          9  Hospital Association, so we should be able to hear

         10  more from them about their position.

         11                 What we are going to do for a moment

         12  is, if we could just keep the witnesses at the

         13  table, because some of us have some more questions.

         14  But we are going to take a vote to, take a break to

         15  vote on the two Resolutions, and then we will resume

         16  testimony. Given how many hearings are going on

         17  today, I want to not lose the quorum when we can

         18  vote.  And both of the resolutions have been

         19  referred, although this is a joint hearing of Health

         20  and Immigration, the resolutions were referred to

         21  the Health Committee. So there will be a vote of

         22  only the Health Committee members on both of the

         23  resolutions.

         24                 Sorry, Lew, but in spirit, Council

         25  Member Fidler would have voted.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Well, I mean,

          3  I would have loved to vote yes.  But I would ask, on

          4  the record, that I be added as a sponsor on Reso.

          5  568.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Great, thank you.

          7    And if the clerk could please call the roll.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Quinn.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Aye on all.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Clarke.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Madam Chair,

         12  I would like to ask, on the record as well, that I

         13  be added to Resolution 371- A as a co- sponsor, and

         14  I vote aye on both.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Sears.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Aye on both.

         17  Although, I thought I was on 568, I am a sponsor of

         18  371, so if that could be looked at, because I

         19  believe that I was on that.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Just checking

         21  whatever people were, a mistake happened there, if

         22  we could fix that and add both, add Council Member

         23  Sears to that, well not add her, fix the omission,

         24  you know what I mean.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Stewart.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Aye on all.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Vann.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Yes, explaining

          5  my vote.  I am a sponsor of 568, I would also like

          6  to be on 371- A, and I vote aye on all.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Oddo.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  No.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of 5 in the

         10  affirmative, 1 in the negative, and no abstentions,

         11  both resolutions are adopted.  Council members,

         12  please sign the Committee reports.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  I

         14  want to ask a couple of follow- up questions.  So

         15  Bellevue and Gouverneur have TEMIS presently; that

         16  is correct?

         17                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  That is part of

         18  their interpreter study.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  What do the other

         20  hospitals have, what are the models that they have?

         21                 Dr. SCOTT- COLLINS:  Bellevue and

         22  Gouverneur have TEMIS, they also have training staff

         23  who --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Is your mic on?

         25                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  Sorry.  Bellevue
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          2  and Gouverneur have TEMIS.  They also, as do all of

          3  the hospitals have trained staff who do face- to-

          4  face interpretation, and they have a telephone, a

          5  language line service that can be called at any time

          6  of the day and the night, and provide interpretation

          7  in 60 or 70 languages, any languages.

          8                 So the difference is that the other

          9  hospitals have not yet been able to add TEMIS to

         10  their complement of interpreter services.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And the other

         12  hospitals have the trained staff and the phone

         13  system.

         14                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  All hospitals

         15  have a phone, and in most hospitals it is a dual

         16  handset phone so that both the patient and the

         17  physician have a phone handset at the same time, and

         18  communicate back and forth that way.  And as I

         19  mentioned, we are in the process of ramping up our

         20  training programs so we have more trained staff.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Training for the

         22  phone system, or training for an interpreter?

         23                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  Training for the

         24  bilingual staff to be interpreters.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And is there a
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          2  threshold at which, you know, a hospital has to have

          3  X percentage of their staff who are bilingual before

          4  we say that that hospital actually has bilingual

          5  staff services?

          6                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  There is not a

          7  specific threshold that I am aware of, or that is

          8  put forth by the Office of Civil Rights.  There are

          9  thresholds that we meet in terms of making sure that

         10  we have a complement of language services that is

         11  based on the share of your patient population - -

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay.

         13                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS: - -  that speaks

         14  that language.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And how does that

         16  work out?

         17                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  That works for

         18  New York State, it is 1 percent, if 1 percent of

         19  your patient population, or the population in the

         20  community, and your hospital speaks a language, you

         21  need to provide, at least, a minimum of services in

         22  terms of interpretation in translated materials.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I have heard the

         24  concern raised by advocates that, the phone system

         25  we get charged per minute; is that correct?
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          2                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  Right, correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I have heard the

          4  concern from advocates that patients have reported

          5  to them that they feel like their calls, those

          6  interpreter calls are rushed.  And that people have

          7  the perception that because of the financial

          8  constraints that they are being forced to have

          9  shorter diagnostic conversations than they would if

         10  they were not on the phone.

         11                 So, one, have you all received that

         12  complaint?  And two, whether you have or you haven't

         13  do you do any monitoring to make sure that that is

         14  not the case.  I mean I do not know if you want to

         15  average, you know, how long it takes a doctor to

         16  talk to somebody to have that first, you know,

         17  history, blah, blah, blah. And if you have a sense

         18  of whether it is a lot shorter when they do it

         19  through the phone thing?

         20                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  It is an

         21  interesting, it is not a feedback that has come back

         22  directly to us, to my office.  It certainly, we

         23  certainly have ways of trying to explore that

         24  further.  I meet regularly with the LEP coordinators

         25  across all of the networks and facilities.  And
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          2  certainly part of our discussions relate to training

          3  and reviewing the accessibility of equipment related

          4  to the phone services as well as usage data that we

          5  get from the companies we contract with.  So it

          6  certainly is an interesting thing for us to look at.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  That would be

          8  great, I mean the Committee would appreciate that.

          9  And I am sure as you stay around and hear the panels

         10  of advocates, that is one of the things that will

         11  get raised.

         12                 This is a question for both HHC and

         13  DOHMH, you just took us through what the hospitals

         14  have.  What do both the HHC and DOH clinics as it

         15  relates to interpreter services, or you know,

         16  equipment like the phones, or whatever?

         17                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  For HHC, for our

         18  diagnostic and treatment centers and clinics, the

         19  same would apply.  A network has a contract with a

         20  language line service as all of our clinics have

         21  access to that, to that service.  I mentioned the

         22  translated materials, those are available on our

         23  Corporate Internet site so it can be accessed and

         24  download at any site where you have computer

         25  connected.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  So all of the

          3  HHC, the Diagnostic and Treatment facilities, the

          4  Child Health Clinics, any of the clinics all have

          5  the phone, or the phone translation equipment on

          6  site?

          7                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  All should have

          8  access to the, at least, to the telephone service

          9  that their network has contracted to.  Some of them

         10  don't have as much of the dual handset equipment,

         11  yet, as they need really.  But at a minimum can do

         12  it over a regular telephone connection.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And are either

         14  with the clinics or the hospitals, are they, people

         15  given a budget, are they not allowed to go over X

         16  thousands of dollars as it relates to use of these

         17  services, and our clinics that have a higher

         18  percentage of patients who do not speak English

         19  given extra money in their budget to take care of

         20  the additional use that might occur?

         21                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  I have to say

         22  that the way that the networks and facilities budget

         23  for services really varies across all of the

         24  networks.  I am sure we can get you some more

         25  information that is specific to them.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  That would be

          3  great.  And how about at the DOH clinics?

          4                 MS. GASNER:  At DOH - -

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  You need to

          6  identify yourself for the record.

          7                 MS. GASNER:  Okay, my name is Rose

          8  Gasner.  I am the Director of Policy and Planning in

          9  the Division of Disease Control. And in our clinics,

         10  STD, TB immunization we have a volunteer language

         11  bank for DOH employees who can speak 50 languages,

         12  and they participate in a language bank across the

         13  agency.  We also use the telephone services in our

         14  clinics, and we also have more focused recruitment

         15  in clinics that serve predominantly one population

         16  where there are language needs there.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Can you elaborate

         18  a little bit on what the language bank, I think that

         19  was the phrase you used, how that works, what that

         20  looks like?

         21                 MS. GASNER:  Well we have 200, it is

         22  a volunteer for Health Department employees who

         23  speak languages, because our own staff is very

         24  diverse, although, geographically they are all over

         25  at different sites.  So it is described as 200
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          2  Health Department employees who speak more than 50

          3  languages, who have volunteered their services as

          4  interpreters, reviewers of our written materials,

          5  and advisors on different publications.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I am sorry, I was

          7  just getting an update for my staff, the Greater New

          8  York's position, because actually they are not going

          9  to come, but I will give everybody an update.  So,

         10  can you say that again.

         11                 MS. GANSER:  Sorry.  Okay, I think

         12  that in our clinics themselves, probably the two

         13  most important services are the telephone,

         14  professional interpreter services, as well as our

         15  own staff where we have had enhanced recruitment to

         16  have people on site who speak the languages that are

         17  most prevalent in those neighborhoods.

         18                 The Volunteer Language Bank is 200

         19  Health Department employees, who speak more than 50

         20  languages, and they participate in the Language Bank

         21  as interpreters, reviewers so they would look over

         22  publications and advisors.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And when you say

         24  they participate as interpreters, does that mean

         25  that if I went to the Lenora Bombgarden Health
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          2  Clinic, which is in my district today, and I went

          3  with a constituent who did not speak English, that

          4  there would be one of those volunteers on- site in

          5  the building who maybe we would be in the TV Clinic,

          6  but we go get them from the dental clinic, and they

          7  would be able to translate, or does that mean that

          8  they could be at 125 Worth Street, and we would get

          9  them on the telephone?

         10                 MS. GASNER:  I would have to get back

         11  to you how exactly that operates.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  It seems like

         13  something you should have brought with you, given

         14  the topic.  So how does it work, I mean, you do not

         15  know?

         16                 MS. GASNER:  I do not know, but my

         17  sense from our clinical services is that the first

         18  thing may be the professional, if they are not there

         19  on- site and on a list of people in the building,

         20  that you wouldn't necessarily call 125 Worth, that

         21  you would call the professional.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  No, no, no, I

         23  mean my reference other 125 Worth was, does that

         24  person, one of those  200 work at Central?

         25                 MS. GANSER:  Some of them might, and
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          2  I would imagine that, you know, it would be, it

          3  would vary.  If it is looking over brochures, things

          4  like that.   Like for that type of language services

          5    - -

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  No, a real

          7  person.

          8                 MS. GASNER: - -  I think that, my

          9  guess would be, and I will get back to you to find

         10  out the actual practice, because I am a 125 Worth

         11  person, that the professional language services,

         12  telephone line is what you would rely on.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And do you have

         14  any idea of the 200 staff in the DOH Language Bank,

         15  how many of them are actually at clinics?

         16                 MS. GASNER:  No, I do not, but I will

         17  get back to you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay, and every

         19  DOH clinic has the handset equipment there, or how

         20  many have the handset equipment?

         21                 MS. GASNER:  I am not sure, the

         22  handset equipment is the TEMIS.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  No.

         24                 MS. GASNER:   I am pretty sure that

         25  they all do.  I know that the Language Line
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          2  Services, I could give you the data  that in 2004

          3  there were 5,700 calls made in our clinics using

          4  those services.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And they are done

          6  in the same way with the doctor having one, and the

          7  patient having one.  And do you all ever monitor

          8  whether those interactions are shorter than ones

          9  without the phone to see whether this complaint

         10  about patients feeling rushed because of the, you

         11  know, the cash register ticking, do you guys monitor

         12  that?

         13                 MS. GASNER:  I have never heard about

         14  that as a complaint.  I mean, I can understand it as

         15  a concern, and I can get back to you on how the

         16  budgetary things work, if they are given a set

         17  amount.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Yes, that would

         19  be helpful. HHC, as I said, it is great that you are

         20  in very strong opposition to the proposed federal

         21  regs.  Is there any, your position on that, is there

         22  any change that the feds could make that would

         23  change your position, is there any, you know, you

         24  envision a reincarnation of that that might enable

         25  you to support it?
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          2                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  That it would

          3  definitely have to be, removing medical requirement

          4  around the immigration, asking patients about their

          5  status.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Let's say that,

          7  we are hearing potential rumors that it could change

          8  explicitly asking patients about their immigration

          9  status, but instead to asking for other information

         10  that would defacto indicate whether an individual

         11  was documented or not.

         12                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  No, we would not

         13   - -

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Right, exactly,

         15  like asking for Social Security numbers.

         16                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  No, no, no, we

         17  would not do that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay that is

         19  great.  One last question is, which is related, but

         20  not 100 percent, it is probably to go to user.  Can

         21  you give us a little update on how the

         22  Administration is monitoring, holding, you know, HRA

         23  and Medicaid accountable about, for the

         24  implementation of Local Law 73?  Being it is a

         25  public benefit.
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          2                 MR. YAN:  We are also were designated

          3  by the Mayor to work with all the covered agencies

          4  under Local Law 73 to coordinate their

          5  implementation policies, and that has been a top

          6  priority of our office, we are working closely with

          7  them.  We have not only taken, we have been looking

          8  very strictly at the requirements of Local Law 73,

          9  but also the requirements under Title VI, and DOJ

         10  and HHS guidelines implementing Title VI, and

         11  President Clinton's Executive Order for LEP access.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Could you provide

         13  the Committee with some information on how, what

         14  type of progress has been made with the Local Law 73

         15  implementation, and exactly how are you monitoring

         16  that, with HRA?

         17                 MR. YAN:  Well the law provides

         18  certain time lines for implementation that we are

         19  following.  So the law requires implementation plans

         20  that agency's must develop by a certain time, very

         21  soon, and we are working with them on that.  Those

         22  time, none of those time lines have quite expired,

         23  yet.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Can we request

         25  that when you get the implementation plans from the
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          2  agency that they be provided to the Council?

          3                 MR. YAN:  Absolutely.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Great.  Council

          5  Member Stewart.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  I want to take

          7  you off the topic a little bit.  In HHC I know

          8  normally, based on the information you have for

          9  social services, you do referrals. However, do you

         10  have any, based on the information, do you have any

         11  referral system by if someone needs immigration

         12  services, whether you do it there or you do a

         13  referral as far as immigration services are

         14  concerned?

         15                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  We probably need

         16  to get back to fully answer that question for you.

         17  We certainly work closely in providing information

         18  to our organizations in the communities who focus on

         19  immigration services.  We have worked on outreach,

         20  and the community organizations help provide that

         21  information to our patients.  We probably get more

         22  information for you on that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  All right,

         24  thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I just have one
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          2  final question, you had mentioned the $20 million

          3  figure, and that is what your present, HHC is

          4  presently spending on translation and interpretation

          5  expense staff training.  And $20 million dollars

          6  more would get you a good way to where you want to

          7  go, correct?  In that $20 million, does that include

          8  costs for expanded TEMIS sites?

          9                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  It includes cost

         10  for expanding the whole set, a whole set of

         11  interpreter services, including training staff.  It

         12  could certainly include some of the costs of TEMIS.

         13  There is a lot of work going on around budgeting and

         14  proposals for being able to specifically expand

         15  TEMIS.  And the budget for that alone may certainly

         16  exceed the $20 million, if it were also to cover the

         17  translation of written materials, and staff

         18  training, and other pieces of it.  But that is

         19  certainly part of what we are looking at.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And for expansion

         21  of TEMIS there would be capital costs in that, as

         22  well, right?

         23                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  Right.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Actually, last

         25  year, we began probably a little later in the budget
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          2  process than any of us would have liked discussions

          3  between HHC and the Council about trying to help in

          4  the budget expanding TEMIS.  And you know, we do not

          5  know what this year's budget will hold, whether it

          6  will be horrible, terrible, bad, or just not good.

          7  But we have had these discussions with LaRay and

          8  other folks at HHC, but would like to have those

          9  discussions about what could be done, if there is

         10  money in the capital budget earlier on to see how

         11  the Council could be supportive of that.

         12                 DR. SCOTT- COLLINS:  I would be happy

         13  to get back to you on that.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I know that John

         15  knows that anyway.  Thank you.  Any other questions?

         16                 Great, we are going to call up our

         17  next witness, --  Thank you all very much. - -

         18  which is, Angela Ramirez, representing Congress

         19  Member Joe Crowley, and I just wanted to say, to the

         20  record, Congressman Crowley has been very, very

         21  outspoken and a leader both in his district, as

         22  Council Member Sears can attest to, and in

         23  Washington, against these regulations.  And

         24  actually, recently held a meeting with immigration

         25  advocates about these regulations that are pending.
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          2  And we, in the Council, want to very much thank

          3  Angela and his whole office for, and himself, for

          4  the work that they have done and will keep doing.

          5                 I said earlier that we were going to

          6  have a rep from the Greater New York Hospital

          7  Association, we just got a call from one of their

          8  Government Affairs folks, Lloyd Bishop, and they are

          9  not going to be able to make it.  But, less we ever

         10  think that having a Council hearing does not spur

         11  action.  This morning, I am going to say because of

         12  this hearing, who knows whether that is true or not,

         13  the Greater New York Hospital Association held a

         14  Board meeting to finalize their position on the

         15  issue.  We will be getting a copy of their written

         16  position in the very near future. It has been

         17  characterized to us as not exactly the same as

         18  HHC's, but very close.  And Greater New York

         19  Hospital Association has come out in support of the

         20  Council's resolution today.

         21                 So I think those are two very good

         22  indicators that we will have the private hospital

         23  standing with us, though of course the devil is in

         24  the details, we will wait until we see the

         25  statement.  But I think those are two positive
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          2  indications that we will have a united New York City

          3  hospital system in our battle against our foes in

          4  Washington.

          5                 So with that said, if you could just

          6  identify yourself for the record, and deliver your

          7  testimony.

          8                 MS. RAMIREZ:  Good morning.  My name

          9  is Angela Ramirez, and I am representing Congressman

         10  Joseph Crowley, who is, unfortunately, unable to

         11  attend this morning as he has to be in Washington

         12  for votes.  But I would like to read his testimony

         13  for the record today.

         14                  "I would first like to thank the New

         15  York City Council, the Speaker, and especially

         16  Councilwoman Quinn for having me here today.  I

         17  would also like to thank the Immigrant and Health

         18  Care Advocates, and the representatives for all of

         19  the important work that they do on these important

         20  issues.  The work that we do means little, if there

         21  are not people in the communities providing care,

         22  attracting the needs of people that live in our

         23  great city.

         24                 In the interest of time, I would like

         25  to focus on Resolution 568, and the impact of
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          2  Section 1011, and that the impact that it can have

          3  on the health of communities.  When it comes to

          4  health care, particularly, for our immigrant

          5  communities, Washington and the Republican Congress

          6  has not only been in- kind, it has also been

          7  shortsighted.  One of the few acceptable sections to

          8  come out of the Medicare Drug Legislation, and

          9  incidentally, a section added to win Democratic

         10  support for the bill, the Section 1011, which allows

         11  for the reimbursement for hospitals here in New York

         12  that treat undocumented patients.  If done properly

         13  this Section 1011 funding provides benefit and

         14  relief to New York City's Health and Hospitals

         15  Corporation, as well as other area hospitals that

         16  treat undocumented patients.  But if done poorly,

         17  this  could result in the public health and economic

         18  catastrophe in this city.

         19                 Regardless of where one stands on

         20  immigration policy, the fact remains that when

         21  anyone walks into the emergency room of a hospital,

         22  like Elmhurst or Jacobi in my district, these

         23  hospitals will treat them.  It is not only a moral

         24  imperative, it is the law.  And hospitals like those

         25  throughout my district and the City that go above
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          2  and beyond to provide safe, effective, relevant care

          3  to a community as diverse as this one, should not be

          4  financially punished for taking care of their

          5  patients in need, or for abiding by federal law.

          6                 In cold financial terms, Section 1011

          7  provides much needed financial relief to our

          8  nation's hospitals, including an estimated $12

          9  million to New York City alone.  Our City and our

         10  hospitals need this funding, and it is certainly

         11  time that the federal government respond to - -

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Angela, just hang

         13  on one second. We all did very well on that fire

         14  drill, today.

         15                 MS. RAMIREZ:  Okay, I will continue.

         16  Our city and our hospitals need this funding, and it

         17  is certainly time that the federal government

         18  responded to those areas most impacted by

         19  undocumented population.

         20                 Some on the other side of this issue

         21  posit that if we eliminate any reimbursement for

         22  medical care for undocumented patients, that the

         23  issue of undocumented patient care and their related

         24  cost will disappear.  But I am sure that most

         25  everyone here knows that is, simply, not the case.
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          2                 Current Federal law, the Emergency

          3  Medical Treatment and Active Labor Act, requires

          4  hospitals to provide emergency care to anyone who

          5  comes through the emergency rooms, without regard to

          6  race, creed, color, financial ability to pay,

          7  citizenship, or immigration status.  Thankfully for

          8  all of us, hospitals will continue to fulfill this

          9  mission.  Unfortunately, if they are not reimbursed

         10  for the treatment of one population, they will have

         11  to make up that loss elsewhere.

         12                 But this is more than strictly

         13  funding reimbursement for hospitals.  We are also

         14  talking about possible plans to intimidate certain

         15  people into not getting medical care.  As the

         16  federal government considers how to implement this

         17  reimbursement proposal, the initially proposed

         18  having physicians ask their patients for their

         19  citizenship status.  While this might seem innocuous

         20  on the surface, any provider in an immigrant

         21  community in Queens or the Bronx, or really anywhere

         22  in the City, can tell you what the result of such

         23  questioning will be.  Many people who need care will

         24  either delay care or avoid it altogether.

         25                 Again, the other side tries to cloak
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          2  this as a controversial immigration issue.  Are

          3  certain populations taking away a person's resources

          4  from our hospitals?  Are we supporting those who are

          5  here illegally at the expense of those who play by

          6  our rules?

          7                 But for so many reasons, this need

          8  not be a controversial issue.  This is about

          9  recognizing that the failure of our immigration

         10  system, particularly the incredible delays that are

         11  associated with it, are not held up as an excused

         12  for holding up our health care system.  This is

         13  about protecting the health of children, many of

         14  whom are citizens, who might happen to have parents

         15  who are not documented and, in turn, will not go to

         16  a hospital.  This is about protecting the humanity

         17  of all people who come through our hospitals' doors

         18  seeking care.  This is about supporting hospitals

         19  that provide that care.  But arguably most

         20  importantly this issue is about protecting the

         21  health and humanity of our entire community.

         22  Communicable diseases like tuberculosis do not ask

         23  immigration status, and neither should doctors.

         24                 Hospitals, doctors, staff, health

         25  care and advocacy organizations, they do not create
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          2  a climate to frightened some in need out of getting

          3  care, and neither should Washington.

          4                 I recently held a Town Hall meeting

          5  at Elmhurst Hospital with Councilwoman Quinn, that

          6  was a productive discussion between health care and

          7  immigrant advocates, and elected officials. For me,

          8  the message from that meeting was clear, that asking

          9  invasive citizenship and immigration questions puts

         10  excessive burdens on our facilities and providers.

         11  And that asking these invasive questions endangers

         12  the health of patients and, in turn, the health of

         13  our communities.  We were all in agreement on that.

         14  And I am taking this unified message to a meeting I

         15  am having with CMS Director Scott McClellan and our

         16  House Democratic Caucus Chair in the upcoming days.

         17  The message I will send to Director McClellan will

         18  undoubtedly reflected the message I heard today.

         19                 As such, I look forward to hearing

         20  the comments from this session.  And again, I

         21  commend the City Council, and particularly

         22  Councilwoman Quinn for taking up this important

         23  issue.

         24                 Thank you."

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Council Member
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          2  Clarke.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  I want to

          4  thank you for bringing Congressman Crowley's

          5  comments to us, and thank him for his leadership on

          6  this issue.

          7                 My question is, I guess partly a

          8  political one, has the Congressman been able to

          9  identify colleagues on the hill that are working

         10  with him?  Because this is, indeed, it is particular

         11  to New York City, but just by virtue by the type of

         12  nation we have here, it must impact on other states

         13  around the nation.  Do you know whether he has been

         14  able to sort of, I guess, pull together a coalition

         15  of other Congressional representative, as well as

         16  perhaps some folks on the Senate side, who are

         17  looking at, perhaps, drafting legislation to

         18  counteract some of the adverse impact of Section

         19  1011?

         20                 MS. RAMIREZ:  We have definitely been

         21  focusing on the House side right now, because we are

         22  putting together the meeting with Mr. McClellan.

         23  And there is good and bad news, to be frank.  The

         24  good news is that we have had a lot of success

         25  working with our House Democratic Leadership,
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          2  particularly with Congressman Menendez, he has been

          3  personally involved in this issue.   And so we are

          4  going to have a meeting on that side, and our

          5  leadership has been very supportive.

          6                 We have on the other side of the

          7  aisle, on the House side specifically, have made

          8  some strides, some in- roads, I guess, but our

          9  challenge really is, as we had talked about, I know

         10  with Councilwoman Quinn earlier, is that when we are

         11  presenting this issue a lot of the members have

         12  comes to us, mainly off the record, about the

         13  concerns that they are getting hit by Republican

         14  leadership in their districts, and especially given

         15  the election and their own individual elections, a

         16  lot of concern about if they have to take a vote on

         17  this, or if they have to take a stand on this, they

         18  only have to take one stand, and it is very clear.

         19  And that we are not asking them to vote on it again

         20  and again.

         21                 One of the issues that came up with

         22  the Rohrabacher Amendment is the spring, that

         23  someone had mentioned, was that only received 88

         24  Republican, or 88 votes altogether, which was great

         25  news for our cause.  But at the same time, a lot of
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          2  the Democrats and Republicans that voted against it,

          3  that come from more mixed districts, got a lot of

          4  hurdle blocks from their constituencies, so we say,

          5  and not necessarily on the supportive side.  So they

          6  are a little leery of actively supporting something

          7  until it is clear it is going to go through.

          8                 So that is really our challenge.  The

          9  good news is that we definitely have our

         10  leadership's ear on the Democratic House side, and

         11  we definitely have some supporters on the Republican

         12  side.  The challenge is to just make sure when it

         13  does come time to making an ultimate stand on

         14  whatever provisions come out, that we are able to

         15  take that one stand, instead of having it lengthen

         16  over time.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Earlier, I am not

         18  sure if you were here or not, we had that kind of

         19  discussion with some of the folks from the Bloomberg

         20  Administration about what steps Mayor Bloomberg may

         21  or may not have taken to try to compel his

         22  Republican colleagues to cease and assist with

         23  attack on immigrants and their health care.  And the

         24  representative from the Mayor's Office of Immigrant

         25  Affairs asked for suggestions of what they could be
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          2  doing.  I was wondering if either you, or if not, if

          3  you went back to Congressman Crowley and then let us

          4  know, had any suggestions about what the Council

          5  could be doing to be more active and more vocal.

          6  We, obviously, it was part of our agenda last week,

          7  we sent letters to the Secretary and to the CMS

          8  Director, and are passing the resolution today,

          9  which will, of course, communicate to Washington.

         10  So one, if you or the Congress member will let us

         11  know today or in the future what else we can do, and

         12  then also, if you have any suggestions, or he does,

         13  about what else the Bloomberg Administration could

         14  be doing, we would, you know, be happy to convey

         15  that and try to make that happen as well.

         16                 MS. RAMIREZ:  Sure, I will definitely

         17  ask him about any suggestions that he has.  I know

         18  that he was very appreciative of the representation

         19  that was down last week.  And that, of course,

         20  always having a presence on the hill is always

         21  helpful, since in our day- to- day, especially

         22  during session, we often lose sight of what is

         23  actually going on back home.  And it is hard to make

         24  that case, when we are out at the staff level or the

         25  elected official level are going around to garner
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          2  support.  So that is always helpful when people come

          3  down and actually meet face- to- face with people.

          4                 And I did hear part of the testimony

          5  from Mayor Bloomberg's representative.  And I think,

          6  and I will ask my boss for his opinion on this, as

          7  well, but I know from perspective of the staff

          8  level, New York City is in sort of a unique position

          9  where they are incredibly impacted by Section 1011,

         10  and would be incredibly, negatively impacted, if the

         11  suggested regulations were to come into effect.  And

         12  at the same time, we have a Republican Mayor, and

         13  given the partisanship climate in Washington, it

         14  seems like any pressure that they could have, it is,

         15  quite frankly, very difficult to talk to the

         16  Administration especially before November as a

         17  Democratic staff.  So if a Republican Office can go

         18  to the Administration, I am sure they would have a

         19  good deal, they would, most likely, take that into

         20  account.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: First, I know

         22  Helen and Annabel being from Queens and the Bronx,

         23  Congressman Crowley's district would agree that

         24  Congressman Crowley never loses sight of the issues

         25  at home.

                                                            82

          1  HEALTH AND IMMIGRATION

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Oh, if I may,

          3  he never does, and I really want to thank him.   May

          4  I just ask one question?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Sure, of course.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  We know the

          7  district has so many civic associations, and I know

          8  them and I go before them.  Has he asked the

          9  associations to write a letter to the appropriate

         10  authorities?  Because that in itself, not that it

         11  might change absolutely and do a 90 degree

         12  turnaround, but it does have effect. And the local

         13  groups are very, very effective and very vocal.  And

         14  I know that they would much prefer to have a healthy

         15  community than a sick one.

         16                 MS. RAMIREZ:  Sure that is a good

         17  point.  We actually, mostly have been targeting the

         18  immigrant advocates, but the civic associations that

         19  is a really good point.  I will definitely pass that

         20  along.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Earlier you

         23  mentioned that you have about 88 members who might

         24  support initiatives to work with immigrants in this

         25  respect.  Are you saying, basically, that this anti-
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          2  immigrant sentiment that is going around now, that

          3  will change after the election; is that what you are

          4  indicating?

          5                 MS. RAMIREZ:  Not specifically, and I

          6  should be clear when I say that the 88 members that

          7  voted in support of the Rohrabacher Amendment, that

          8  the Rohrabacher Amendment was significantly more

          9  detrimental than what we are discussing here today.

         10  The Rohrabacher Amendment would have expressly

         11  required physicians to turn patients into

         12  immigration officials, as opposed to right now they

         13  just have to maintain the citizenship and

         14  immigration status on their own.  So those 88

         15  members we view as extraordinarily anti- immigrant,

         16  and that is really a block that we are not going to

         17  touch regardless of what sort of provisions, or what

         18  sort of specifics come out CMS or HHS.

         19                 And so, just to be clear, our thought

         20  is that they are probably, we probably would lose

         21  more, a lot more members than the 88 that we lost,

         22  if something like this were to come up to a vote on

         23  the floor, not that it is.

         24                 But then moving forward, it will be,

         25  I think, from a political perspective do not see how

                                                            84

          1  HEALTH AND IMMIGRATION

          2  people in mixed Republican moderate districts are

          3  able to take a terribly strong stand on this before

          4  November.  I think the Administration, and that is

          5  why I think individuals, like Mayor Bloomberg, might

          6  have a little more pull than Democrats.  But I know

          7  that the Administration is very aware of this.  And

          8  while they are courting certain votes that are

          9  associated often with the immigrant community, at

         10  the same time, they are definitely courting people

         11  that would have problems with something like this.

         12                 So, I think prior to November, our

         13  challenge really is to get Republicans involved and

         14  put some pressure on the Administration that way, as

         15  well as of course organizing our base and working

         16  with our Democratic leadership.  But I think ideally

         17  really, you have to involve both sides.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  How does this

         19  effect the Dream Act, you know, because I feel,

         20  right now, there is a wave of anti immigrant

         21  sentiment.  More so in the other states than New

         22  York. How will this effect the proposed Dream Act.

         23                 MS. RAMIREZ:  I think directly there

         24  is no link between these proposed provisions and the

         25  Dream Act.  But indirectly, of course, there is, as
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          2  you noted this general anti immigrant sentiment that

          3  is associated with these potential provisions, and

          4  certainly would be associated with anyone that is

          5  fervently opposed to the Dream Act.

          6                 So while directly if CMS were to go

          7  ahead with the provisions that they have suggested

          8  over the summer, there would not be any direct

          9  impact, were the Dream Act to pass.  I think

         10  indirectly you are kind of looking at a political

         11  reality of CMS suggesting that we do not have to

         12  take care of, not only our immigrant population, but

         13  really the public health in general, in sort of

         14  putting that in front of public health.  And one

         15  could imagine that they are certainly willing to put

         16  public education or the education of a community

         17  ahead of, or rather behind immigrant politics.

         18                 So I guess that is sort of a round

         19  about way of saying, there is no direct correlation,

         20  but I certainly see from a message perspective and

         21  from a political perspective that there is an

         22  indirect correlation.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  One thing I just

         24  wanted to say about the timing and your reference to

         25  the election, which I think is important for all of
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          2  us to know.  You know, we had been hearing that

          3  these regulations could potentially be implemented

          4  by the agency at any moment.  And now they have been

          5  postponed, and not to be cynical and political, but

          6  I would render the guess that they have been

          7  postponed until after the election, Presidential

          8  election because the President Bush is trying to get

          9  the support of a lot of the members of the Latino

         10  community and others, and does not want to be seen

         11  as anti- immigrant.

         12                 So, one, we should talk about the

         13  realities of how negative this will be, so people

         14  know what this President is considering.  But, two,

         15  I do not think any of us should be lulled into a

         16  false sense of security by the delay.  I think, in

         17  fact, we should feel more of a sense of urgency by

         18  the fact that these have been postponed, probably

         19  until after the election.  Although, no one has said

         20  that specifically about the term of the

         21  postponement.

         22                 Thank you very much, and give the

         23  Congressman our thanks.

         24                 MS. RAMIREZ:   Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  We are next going
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          2  to call up a panel of five folks.  I think we need a

          3  couple of more chairs over there.  Francesca Gany,

          4  Adam Gurvitch, Joaquin Morante, Liliana Vaamande,

          5  and Michael Scherz.  And I apologize if I have

          6  gotten anybody's name wrong, and then they will be

          7  followed by another panel afterwards.

          8                 You could arm wrestle for whoever

          9  goes first, flip a coin, or just go ahead.

         10                 MR. GURVITCH:  Council Member Quinn,

         11  thank you for convening this meeting, this hearing

         12  on Immigrant Health Access. My name is Adam

         13  Gurvitch.  I am the Director of Health Advocacy with

         14  the New York Immigration Coalition.  And I wanted to

         15  thank you and other members of the Health Committee

         16  on behalf of our network of 150 organizations for

         17  passing Resolution 371 and 568 out of the Health

         18  Committee and bringing those before the Council.  It

         19  has been an incredibly challenging and dynamic time

         20  in New York City for immigrants the last few years.

         21  And increasingly immigrants are becoming confused

         22  and afraid as a result of mixed messages they are

         23  getting from government.  So it is very significant

         24  that the New York City Council is taking a

         25  proactive, supportive role.
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          2                 I also want to take the opportunity

          3  in this public forum to express the appreciation of

          4  our communities for New York City's Health and

          5  Hospital Corporation.  They have really done an

          6  astounding job with very limited finances.  They

          7  have put in place an excellent confidentiality

          8  policy that is very strong in protecting immigrants

          9  and making them feel secure.  We just need outreach

         10  now into communities to get the word out.  HHC has

         11  also put in place the payment plan, HHC Options,

         12  which as was mentioned earlier will allow anyone in

         13  New York who is uninsured, who is low- or moderate-

         14  income to get reduced cost health care, and that is

         15  very significant for our communities.  And HHC has

         16  also put in place a model language access,

         17  communication policy in our Queens network, and we

         18  are hearing from members in the community that that

         19  is creating a real improvement, in terms of access

         20  to care.

         21                 I am not going to go into all the

         22  background on the immigrant barriers, issues.

         23  Instead, what I would like to do is focus on the

         24  recommendations that we are proposing that are

         25  included in the testimony.  And there are a few
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          2  comments that I would like to make, just as a

          3  general framework, New York City with three million

          4  immigrant residents, more than two million limited

          5  English proficient individuals who are not going to

          6  be able to access health care or negotiate their

          7  bills in English.  There is a phenomenal need for

          8  better communication at Medicaid offices and at

          9  hospitals.  And while we are very heartened by the

         10  serious improvements and the direction that HHC is

         11  headed in, we are increasingly concerned about the

         12  lack of access to immigrants and to the uninsured in

         13  general at private hospitals in New York City.

         14                 Private hospitals receive the largest

         15  share of public support for providing care to people

         16  who are uninsured, and private hospitals are the

         17  most difficult.  And in fact, in many communities

         18  they are viewed as a non- entity, a resource that is

         19  not even possible to approach.  And that is because

         20  of these issues that are language barriers,

         21  communication barriers at hospitals, the lack of

         22  notice to communities about immigrants rights to

         23  care, uninsured individuals' rights to health care,

         24  and not knowing about the fact that that care can be

         25  affordable, as well as immigrant specific concerns
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          2  and those concerns have to do, as was mentioned

          3  earlier, with fear of being reported to immigration

          4  authorities. There are other complex, federal

          5  policies around holding sponsors responsible for

          6  certain public benefits immigrants use.  Their

          7  concerns of families who want to bring their spouse

          8  or child, or parent into the US, and may be

          9  concerned that using programs, public programs will

         10  hurt their ability to reunite with their family.

         11  There are a number of these sorts of concerns.

         12                 And so as a set of recommendations,

         13  we would like to proposed that the Council set

         14  voluntary standards for hospitals that do business

         15  in New York City, particularly the private

         16  hospitals.  So that those facilities can meet their

         17  city, state, and federal requirements around equal

         18  access to services.  So that would be a language

         19  access standard that the Council could encourage the

         20  private hospitals that want to do business in New

         21  York to be meeting.

         22                 We also request that the Council

         23  provide funding to the Health and Hospitals

         24  Corporation, as was just discussed for some of HHC's

         25  innovative programs and to enable them to hire
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          2  patient navigators and interpreters.  And we

          3  strongly support, again, the passage of Resolution

          4  371 where the Council is urging New York State to

          5  also take action on this issue.

          6                 In terms of immigrant spears, the

          7  Health and Hospitals Corporation has put out a very

          8  solid policy saying that any staff person who shares

          9  inappropriately immigration status of patients can

         10  have their employment terminated.  That, frankly,

         11  makes us more confident than the Executive Order 41,

         12  but that is also an important policy that New York

         13  City has put in place.  I recently have seen a

         14  policy that the Department of Health and Mental

         15  Hygiene has developed around confidentiality.  But

         16  it has not been publicly distributed, and we ask the

         17  Council to request that the Department of Health

         18  make its confidentiality policy a part of all of

         19  their outreach when they are doing PSA campaigns in

         20  public transportation, there is no reason why those

         21  can't include information that services are

         22  available to everyone regardless of immigration

         23  status.  And that that information is kept private.

         24                 Council Chair Quinn you had asked the

         25  earlier panel about what HRA is doing in order to
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          2  become linguistically accessible.  We still remain

          3  very concerned about that issue. Advocates who will

          4  testify later will mention that.  At a recent visit

          5  to a Medicaid Office in Queens, the Medicaid workers

          6  told them that they really prefer it if individuals

          7  come in with someone to interpret for them.  That is

          8  unacceptable, it is in violation of both the spirit

          9  and the reality of the law, as well as HRA's own

         10  language access policies.  And we ask the Council to

         11  use its power to investigate the way that HRA is

         12  serving immigrants.   We also know that HRA

         13  continues to provide inaccurate and appropriate

         14  information about who is eligible for programs like

         15  Medicaid, and that that is making it impossible for

         16  some immigrants who could be ensured to get that

         17  insurance, and that is tragic.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  (microphone is

         19  off).

         20                 MR. GURVITCH;  I'm sorry?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  (microphone is

         22  off).

         23                 MR. GURVITCH:  HRA within this year,

         24  so after a number of opportunities to provide staff

         25  training on immigrant eligibility for programs such
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          2  as Medicaid and Family Health Plus, HRA in certain

          3  instances has continued to provide false

          4  information.  For example, that HRA will share

          5  immigration status information if asked by federal

          6  agencies, which is in direct contradiction to the

          7  State Department of Health's written policies. HRA

          8  has also erroneously made statements that

          9  documentation is needed beyond what is actually

         10  needed, and that is making it impossible for some

         11  immigrants, who are, in fact, eligible and have a

         12  right to apply for benefits, are not able to apply

         13  for those insurance programs.  We have seen a lot of

         14  improvement, you know, to HRA's credit, there has

         15  been improvement at a number, not only at the model

         16  offices, but in general in trying to match clients

         17  who come in with staff who speak their language,

         18  whereas before it almost seemed as a deliberate

         19  effort not to do that.  There is some sense now that

         20  the agency is taking some steps, but there is still

         21  a long way to go, and we ask the Council to really

         22  continue to hold HRA accountable for making public

         23  benefits available to New Yorkers.

         24                 The final piece that I want to

         25  mention is the general access problems for the
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          2  uninsured, and we know that 70 percent of uninsured

          3  adults in New York City are immigrants.  We saw it

          4  after this September 11th disaster, with the

          5  disaster relief Medicaid program that hundreds of

          6  thousands of New Yorkers got coverage for a short-

          7  term, temporary insurance through the government.

          8  But hundreds of thousands far more did not get

          9  coverage, and we have seen a study recently by the

         10  Children's Aid Society that shows that even after

         11  parents receive training and information about kids

         12  rights to free public insurance, 20 percent of

         13  immigrant parents say that they would not apply.  So

         14  we know that there are this set of fears and

         15  concerns.  We really ask the Council to do a public

         16  service campaign, a public announcement campaign of

         17  its own reaching out to immigrants to help New

         18  Yorkers understand the way that health care is

         19  available here.  And we ask the Council to introduce

         20  Charity Care and Billing Rights Legislation this

         21  session to protect patients from the very aggressive

         22  and very dysfunctional hospital billing practices.

         23                 We are also extremely concerned that

         24  in the outpatient emergency room situation, which is

         25  where most emergencies are cared for.  Both the
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          2  public and private hospitals are ignoring emergency

          3  Medicaid, which is a federal source of funding for

          4  undocumented immigrants to pay for their care.  And

          5  instead, those low- income immigrants are getting

          6  phenomenal large bills for services where there is

          7  public money to pay for it.  We ask the Council to

          8  request that HHC develop a plan for using emergency

          9  Medicaid in all cases where an undocumented

         10  individual receives outpatient medical care, so that

         11  those families do not get driven further and further

         12  away from their follow- up care.

         13                 And finally, I just want to make an

         14  appeal to the Council, which has been supportive in

         15  the past of the Medicaid Managed Care Consumer

         16  Assistance Program, supports facilitated enrollment,

         17  to also consider funding for immigrant community

         18  organizations that help their constituents to

         19  understand their rights to health care.  That help

         20  them to resolve their billing problems, and to get

         21  in the door, and to register as patients in clinics,

         22  and to help them navigate the insurance system.

         23                 And I want to thank you for the

         24  opportunity to testify today.

         25                 DR. GANY:  I am Dr. Francesca Gany.
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          2  I am the Director of the Center for Immigrant

          3  Health, which is housed at the NYU School of

          4  Medicine and at Bellevue Hospital Center.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  You might check

          6  if your mic is on.

          7                 DR. GANY:  It is ironic that I am

          8  going to be talking about TEMIS also, the technology

          9  based system.  I couldn't turn on the mic, but...

         10  So I would like to thank you for the opportunity to

         11  appear before you, and for all of the work that you

         12  have been doing on behalf of the health of

         13  immigrants.  The Center for Immigrant Health is a

         14  network of health care providers, social scientists,

         15  community members and policy- makers who conduct

         16  research, education, and service delivery to

         17  decrease health disparities for New York's immigrant

         18  communities.  And one of our major areas of focus is

         19  on language access, because it is such a pressing

         20  need and impact so strongly upon the health of

         21  immigrant communities.

         22                 Over one and a half million New York

         23  City residents are limited English proficient, you

         24  know, a fifth of our population.  And research has

         25  shown that language barriers often result in
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          2  misdiagnoses, poor quality of care, lack of follow-

          3  up with medical appointments, compromised medical

          4  treatment, and very poor patient satisfaction and

          5  community satisfaction with services. Not only is

          6  the provision of equal health care to the LEP

          7  individuals, it is a civil right and a moral

          8  imperative, but it also is an economic necessity.

          9  And we are driven certainly by the moral imperative

         10  and the civil rights, but I feel like I need to

         11  raise that as well when we talk about solutions, and

         12  the cost of solutions.  A number of studies have

         13  shown that an LEP patient's health will be improved

         14  as the result of proper language assistance

         15  examination services, and that cost and utilization

         16  savings will result.

         17                 A widespread practice still in New

         18  York Hospitals is to call upon self- proclaimed,

         19  bilingual hospital employees, be they nurses,

         20  custodians, cooks, or administrators, to interpret.

         21  And usually they are untrained, although it is

         22  wonderful that HHC is implementing training

         23  programs.  But care is rendered in a lot of other

         24  health care facilities where that is not happening,

         25  and still the coverage is not total.  Oftentimes
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          2  children are called upon to interpret for the

          3  patient, or and innocent bystander, somebody else

          4  pulled in from the waiting room to interpret.  And

          5  it is a common misconception that anyone with any

          6  level of bilingualism is capable of providing

          7  effective interpreting.

          8                 Untrained interpreters have been

          9  shown in many studies to omit, add, edit,

         10  substitute, volunteer opinions and really distort

         11  care.  And the use of children brings its own

         12  particularly upsetting solution.

         13                 The use of professionally trained

         14  interpreters not only improves the medical outcomes

         15  for LEP, but it is also cost effective.  There are

         16  solutions now to bring in interpreter services,

         17  throughout New York City in a cost- effective

         18  manner.  And I am going to talk about, not only

         19  about training interpreters, but really focusing on

         20  TEMIS, also known as the RSMI, the Remote

         21  Simultaneous Medical Interpreting System, which we

         22  have been implementing in partnership with the South

         23  Manhattan Network of Health and Hospitals

         24  Corporation and SimulMed, which is a patent holder

         25  on the technology utilized.
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          2                 Some of the key aspects of RSMI is

          3  that the interpreters are rigorously trained, and

          4  they are trained in medical terminology, and they

          5  are trained in cross- cultural issues and health

          6  care, and the ethnics of medical interpreting and

          7  the health care encounter.  And this is really key.

          8  It is a UN style of interpreting, and it really

          9  approximates the same language medical encounter.

         10  The patient and the doctors are communicating to

         11  each other as if there is no language barrier.  It's

         12  shown to have 30 percent fewer errors, medical

         13  errors than other systems of interpreting, so it is

         14  a much safer means of interpreting, and as well, it

         15  is at least one and half times faster than the

         16  conventional over the telephone methods of

         17  interpreting the language line kind of services, or

         18  the Syracom services.  So it is more efficient, so

         19  it is a better solution for hospitals.

         20                 The interpreters are pooled in a

         21  central region, and so it is efficient in that way

         22  as well.  And if in New York we could pool our

         23  resources and connect the hospitals so that they are

         24  all tapping into this interpreter resource, not

         25  exclusively, but for a large part of their
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          2  interpreter services, if the service is scaled up,

          3  then the huge economies of scale will result, and it

          4  will really enable the dissemination of interpreter

          5  services in a much greater fashion than they are

          6  disseminated now, which is very piecemeal and often

          7  not of high quality.

          8                 So a lot of different needs exist for

          9  limiting those proficiencies, including written

         10  material, signage, and outreach to the communities

         11  to tell them the policies.  But in terms of the

         12  gateway to the medical encounter, the gateway to the

         13  health care system, the ability to be able to

         14  communicate at all with anybody you meet, they

         15  really rest on language.  And this is a strategy

         16  that if we pull together, could really be

         17  disseminated and brought to large numbers of

         18  patients.

         19                 I just want to also say that as a

         20  health care provider, and as a health care provider

         21  who focuses on the needs of immigrants, and I speak

         22  for a number of my colleagues, as well, we are

         23  really appalled that the possibility that we be

         24  called upon as health care providers to be

         25  immigration enforcement officers.  And it would be
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          2  completely counter to what we do as our jobs, and in

          3  our heart, which is to improve health care, and

          4  people will just go underground.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 MS. VAAMONDE:  My name is Liliana

          7  Vaamonde.  I am an attorney with the Health Law Unit

          8  with the Legal Aid Society.  We provide health care

          9  advice and representation to hundreds of low income

         10  New Yorkers each year.  We also provide technical

         11  support in training to community- based

         12  organizations and advocates that serve immigrant New

         13  Yorkers, such as the Immigration Coalition and the

         14  Managed Care Consumer Assistance Program.  The

         15  Immigrant Health Access Collaborative today will

         16  present in a subsequent panel, a snapshot of what

         17  immigrants face in navigating the medical system in

         18  New York City.

         19                 I am actually going to speak to a

         20  much narrow issue, which is the legal barriers faced

         21  by immigrants and their advocates.  When they

         22  attempt to bring a national origin discrimination

         23  claim against a facility that has failed to provide

         24  adequate interpreter services, and consequently

         25  harmed limited English proficient patients.
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          2                 The written testimony includes the

          3  legal framework, both the federal, state, and city

          4  laws which require hospitals to provide equal access

          5  to service, regardless of the patient's ability to

          6  speak English, as well as the Civil Rights and Human

          7  Rights enforcement laws.  I am not going to go into

          8  that with you, I am just going to talk to you about

          9  the experience that we have had in trying to enforce

         10  these rights.

         11                 The Legal Aid Society has filed

         12  several Civil Rights complaints and met with state

         13  and local city rights officials. Despite these

         14  efforts, we find that Civil Rights Enforcement

         15  Authorities have not yet made access to health care

         16  a meaningful priority.

         17                 The first issue that comes up

         18  whenever we sit down to discuss one of these

         19  complaints is where are we going to file the claim.

         20  It is an argument about what is the appropriate

         21  forum to use the legal term.  In New York City there

         22  are five different agencies, where a Civil Rights

         23  complaint, involving a health care facility can be

         24  filed.  They are the New York State Division of

         25  Human Rights, the New York City Commission on Human
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          2  Rights, the US Office of Civil Rights, the Civil

          3  Rights Bureau, the New York State Attorney General,

          4  and the New York State Department of Health.

          5                 With so many options our clients

          6  wonder why there are so many incidents of national

          7  origin discrimination.  One local expert suggest

          8  some of the following reasons, these agencies are

          9  under resource, these agencies have procedures that

         10  do not favor complainants, these agencies have long

         11  processing delays that harm individuals, and these

         12  agencies are very sensitive to political influence.

         13  In addition, the private BAR appears not to be

         14  interested in cases where the complainant is looking

         15  for equitable, not monetary, remedies.  And finally,

         16  the Legal Aid and Legal Services community does not

         17  have the resources to aggressively litigate these

         18  issues.

         19                 Because of their oversight

         20  responsibilities for health care facilities, which

         21  includes both enforcement activities and the patient

         22  complaint system, it would be natural for the State

         23  Department of Health to be a leader in the field of

         24  language access.  However, they have been silent on

         25  this issue.  Because of their silence and inaction,
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          2  as advocates we have had to come up with alternative

          3  strategies to help our limited English proficient

          4  community members receive equal, quality care at our

          5  local hospitals.

          6                 I would like to share with you the

          7  story of one of my clients who I brought a complaint

          8  for.  Ms. Ming is a 72- year old woman who speaks

          9  mostly Cantonese and a little bit of English. She

         10  had been treated at her neighborhood hospital

         11  psychiatric clinic for four years for anxiety and

         12  obsessive compulsive disorder.  Her primary

         13  clinician had been changed three times.  The

         14  facility had asked a family member to accompany her

         15  to pitch in as interpreters, if the clinician was

         16  having difficulty communicating with her own

         17  particular issue.

         18                 In April of 2003, the family was

         19  informed that the clinician was leaving. They

         20  assumed that a new doctor would take over.  Instead,

         21  they were told that the hospital would no longer

         22  serve her because of the language barrier.  The

         23  family was asked to find another hospital.  They

         24  were given a list of providers offering bilingual

         25  services to folks of Chinese origin.  The list given
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          2  to Ms. Ming was providers primarily located in

          3  Chinatown, which would require her to travel by

          4  public transportation, which she could not do with

          5  her obsessive compulsive disorder, not to mention

          6  the fact being a 72- year- old woman having to get

          7  on a subway once every month to get down there.

          8                 Shortly after this hospital told the

          9  family that they would no longer serve Ms. Ming, the

         10  hospital sent an official discharge letter, which

         11  opens with the phrase, "They, your doctors speak no

         12  Cantonese, and you speak no English."  I thought I

         13  had a winning case, prima facie evidence of

         14  discrimination, and they put it in a letter.

         15                 I assisted them in filing a complaint

         16  with the Civil Rights Enforcement Agency in August

         17  of 2003.  It took the agency over three months to

         18  schedule an interview.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Which agency this

         20  is?

         21                 MS. VAAMONDE:  We are still before

         22  them, so I have actually - -

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay, fine.

         24                 MS. VAAMONDE:  It is not the City

         25  Commission on Human Rights, because then I would

                                                            106

          1  HEALTH AND IMMIGRATION

          2  share it with you, because you have oversight

          3  responsibility to them.

          4                 It took them three months to schedule

          5  an interview. A month and a half after the interview

          6  to decide that there was sufficient evidence of

          7  discrimination, to accept the case for

          8  investigation.  There was also additional delay

          9  because they identified a potential conflict of

         10  interest.  And today, more than 13 months later,

         11  there is still no decision or resolution for the

         12  family.

         13                 What has happened to Ms. Ming?  She

         14  abandoned treatment.  Shortly thereafter she

         15  experienced a serious decompensation, and her

         16  children had to have her committed involuntarily to

         17  a psychiatric unit.  She was there for more than

         18  eight weeks in a locked unit, and she finally been

         19  discharged to a nursing home, and as of yet, there

         20  is no date when she will be able to return to the

         21  community to her home.

         22                 Another strategy that we have used is

         23  working, pursuing informal negotiations with local

         24  hospitals, where the Immigrant Health Access

         25  Collaborative has identified unequal treatment for
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          2  its LEP members.  The results have been met, with

          3  one conscientious private hospital in Brooklyn,

          4  upper management met with us immediately, fired an

          5  employee with a track record of discriminatory

          6  behavior, reviewed their language access policies,

          7  had retrainings of all staff on this policy, and

          8  brought the Health Law Unit in to train front line

          9  staff on immigrant eligibility for government-

         10  funded program.  But that experience was the

         11  exception.

         12                 Other facilities we have approached,

         13  first refused to meet with us, denied that there

         14  were any problems despite the complaints that we

         15  brought to their attention, profit inadequate

         16  policies that appeared to exist only on paper, and

         17  ultimately left us with the impression that equal

         18  access for limited English proficient patients is

         19  not a priority given their scarce resources. We

         20  continue to collect stories from LEP patients that

         21  stretch along a continuum.  Some clients are

         22  outraged at the way they have been verbally insulted

         23  for not speaking English well or at all.

         24                 At the other end of the spectrum is

         25  one case in which the patient ultimately died,
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          2  because of the hospital's failure to communicate

          3  effectively to him the dangerousness of his

          4  condition.  This has got to stop.

          5                 With regards to Resolution 568, you

          6  guys know it all, you are doing a great job, thank

          7  you for supporting us, supporting us, the immigrant

          8  community and trying to stop the federal government

          9  from doing this.  You should know that in the

         10  testimony I cite a string of academic reports that

         11  document the conditioning of health care services

         12  under disclosure of immigration status, actually

         13  keeps people from getting emergency care.  Anecdotal

         14  evidence has also come to us from our immigrant CBOs

         15  that members are avoiding care because of this

         16  proposed law. Recently, I heard of two independent

         17  reports of women planning to deliver their babies at

         18  home to avoid being reported to immigration

         19  authorities.  So this is already hitting people and

         20  affecting people in terms of access in care.

         21                 I have a host of recommendations,

         22  which I am not going to go through, I just wanted to

         23  highlight two of them for you.

         24                 We would propose that the City

         25  Council should direct the New York City Commission
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          2  on Human Rights to prioritize the issue of health

          3  care access.  They already partner with the New York

          4  Immigration Coalition to provide training to

          5  immigrants on their employment rights.  Perhaps this

          6  partnership could be expanded to include language

          7  access rights for Limited English Proficient New

          8  Yorkers access in care in New York City Hospitals.

          9                 And also, I would ask that the City

         10  Council consider funding language access advocacy to

         11  continue through groups like the Immigrant Health

         12  Access Collaborative.  Without the presence of

         13  immigrant community- based organizations that are

         14  known entities in an immigrant community, there

         15  would be only horror stories emerging from these

         16  communities, as opposed to organized advocacy

         17  initiative.  The CBOs are a known quantity to

         18  community members and a safe haven for organizing

         19  these people to speak out when they are harmed.

         20                 Thank you, again, for making this a

         21  priority.

         22                 MR. SCHERZ:  Good afternoon.  I am

         23  Michael Scherz. I am an attorney with New York

         24  Lawyers for the Public Interest, and I am delighted

         25  that you are holding these hearings, and delighted
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          2  also that you passed the resolutions that were under

          3  consideration today, that is good news.

          4                 I do not repeat anything that is in

          5  the written testimony, but I want to speak for a few

          6  minutes, especially recognizing that there are folks

          7  on community groups that will give you more

          8  information.  And I have to say with pride, my

          9  office represents Make the Road by Walking, and I

         10  want to talk a little bit about some of our

         11  experience with community groups and the great work

         12  that these community groups have done, and the

         13  successes we have had to have some things positive

         14  to say, although, I have to temper all of that with

         15  the very limited success we have had. Because even

         16  though we have had some successes, it is only in the

         17  hospitals where community groups like Make the Road

         18  by Walking, have had their members, and have had an

         19  active presence, and have been able to get the

         20  hospitals to recognize the importance of language

         21  access and language assistant services.

         22                 So the three success stories that I

         23  can talk about very briefly, Woodhull and Wykoff

         24  Hospitals, where together with the Attorney

         25  General's Office, we were able to negotiate
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          2  agreements representing Make the Road by Walking.

          3  Again, and it is  because of the strength of

          4  community groups and the great work they have done,

          5  that hospitals have come to the table and have

          6  realized that they need to sign agreements.

          7                 Just this month we signed an

          8  agreement, also representing Make the Road by

          9  Walking, in addition Fort Green's Strategic

         10  Neighborhood Action Partnership, Fort Green SNAP.

         11  Brooklyn Hospital signed an agreement, I think it is

         12  a very important agreement in that no government

         13  agency was involved in getting the agreement,

         14  getting the hospital to come to the table. There are

         15  community groups applying pressure, and the hospital

         16  recognizing that frankly their own self- interest

         17  requires them to open their doors to people who do

         18  not speak English, and to ensure that immigrant

         19  communities feel welcome in the hospital.

         20                 And the fact that one private

         21  hospital has done this, it does not mean that by any

         22  means we are nearly there. There are so many other

         23  private hospitals, including far larger institutions

         24  with far greater resources.  When we heard testimony

         25  earlier today from HHC about the level of resources
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          2  they have committed to language assistance, it is

          3  truly a shame that the private hospitals with far

          4  greater resources have not devoted similar resources

          5  to tackle the problem, to open the doors and make

          6  themselves welcome to the immigrant community.  And

          7  I hope that the attention that you are shedding on

          8  this will cause more of the private hospital to

          9  recognize their own responsibility.  Maybe even some

         10  of them will recognize that their own self- interest

         11  is, at some point, in having the doors open, making

         12  sure that their services are accessible.  They may

         13  be even also making sure that their malpractice,

         14  that they do not commit malpractice by having bad

         15  translations.  And as Dr. Gany mentioned earlier,

         16  the importance of trained, medical interpreting, and

         17  the importance of truly being a professional

         18  interpreter cannot be overestimated. And we applaud

         19  you for holding these hearings, for passing the

         20  resolutions.

         21                 Our written testimony has a lot more

         22  information about some of the specific

         23  recommendations we have, and as Ms. Vaamonde said,

         24  enforcement is so important, existing laws are not

         25  enforced.  Government agencies that are charged with
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          2  ensuring enforcement of the laws are not as

          3  effective as they should be, and that that should

          4  change.

          5                 And just thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.

          7                 MR. MORANTE:  Thank you very much.

          8  My name is Joaquin Morante.  I am the Outreach

          9  Education Coordinator at the Commission on the

         10  Public Health System.  I would like to thank you for

         11  this opportunity to testify today.

         12                 The Commission is a citywide,

         13  community- based health advocacy organization that

         14  deals primarily with access to health care, and

         15  getting people access, and advocating for access.

         16  As we know, recently arrived immigrants are most

         17  likely not have health insurance coverage.  We also

         18  know that people of color and low- wage jobs, who

         19  are often immigrants are the least likely to be

         20  medically insured.  To further complicate access

         21  barriers many health care facilities do not have

         22  staff that speak the language of the community, nor

         23  have they hired interpreters or made other

         24  arrangements to ensure communication between

         25  provider and patients.
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          2                 We see the most common access

          3  problems faced by immigrants in accessing health

          4  care services are:  Lack of insurance or money to

          5  pay the high cost of health care, lack of

          6  information about safety net providers that are

          7  available to provide care on the sliding fee scale,

          8  and language barriers and lack of available

          9  interpreters to communicate with patients, and the

         10  fear or misinformation about the consequences of

         11  approaching the health care system, particularly, if

         12  the is here without documents.

         13                 In the Commission's report, Placing a

         14  Human Face on the Uninsured, 51 uninsured

         15  individuals were interviewed, half of those being

         16  foreign born.  The report described why people were

         17  uninsured and what they did to access health care

         18  services, or how they avoid going for care.

         19  Anecdotally, one man was hospitalized for a serious

         20  infection and was sent home with a bill that he had

         21  no way of paying of over $80,000 for a stay.  Other

         22  people who were interviewed felt that they had to

         23  lie to get access to health care that they needed.

         24  The Commission received a call recently from a man

         25  whose undocumented friend was hospitalized.  When we
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          2  suggested that the hospital could assist the friend

          3  in applying for emergency Medicaid, as Mr. Gurvitch

          4  said, the man said that he had not given his right

          5  name nor address because he feared being deported,

          6  something that happens time and time again.  The man

          7  who called was worried because hospital staff had

          8  been given his telephone number for use in an

          9  emergency.

         10                 The Commission is working with the

         11  New York Immigration Task Force on language access

         12  in support of state legislation to require health

         13  care interpreters in hospital facilities.  Too many

         14  people have no way of communicating with health care

         15  staff because the staff do not speak the person's

         16  primary language, and there are no interpreters

         17  provided, despite the fact that hospitals are

         18  required to provide the service.  It is primarily

         19  the rule Make the Road by Walking, as stated

         20  previously, and their challenge in serving several

         21  hospitals for not providing interpreters that there

         22  is now some attention to this issue, once again.

         23                 Just last week another, you know, in

         24  another example, the Commission received a call from

         25  a friend of a woman who was hospitalized for what
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          2  she believed to be was a stroke.  Two days after

          3  being admitted, the woman was being discharged and

          4  was petrified because no one had explained to her in

          5  her native language of Spanish that she did not have

          6  a stroke and would be provided with care on an out-

          7  patient basis.  It was only because the Commission

          8  contacted the Administrator at the hospital that a

          9  Spanish- speaking nurse and social worker went to

         10  her bedside to explain the situation.  This is

         11  totally unacceptable and this happens on a daily

         12  basis to patients and leads to an unacceptable low

         13  level of quality of care.

         14                 The Commission has also worked with

         15  the Puerto Rican Legal Defense Fund on a study that

         16  is to be released shortly on the Latino

         17  representation on the Boards and the top

         18  Administrative staff of some of the voluntary

         19  hospitals in New York City.  The record of these

         20  hospitals is dismal, the lack of Latino

         21  representation in these hospitals is shameful.  We

         22  are concerned that the lack of diversity in

         23  governance and administration of these hospitals

         24  translates into a lack of commitment to providing

         25  culturally competent services for the immigration
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          2  population of this City.

          3                 And then also in The Missing Link,

          4  which was another report that was published by the

          5  Commission, we showed that many community

          6  organizations do not know where to send the under-

          7  and uninsured for health care services.  They do not

          8  know the access and financial policies of some of

          9  these institutions, so more likely than not, people

         10  are referred to the emergency room for care, even if

         11  the condition is not serious.  We are currently

         12  working with the Bronx Health Link in setting up a

         13  community network in the Bronx that will publish

         14  broader access information for the neighborhood so

         15  that residents are given more options in choosing

         16  where to go for health care services.

         17                 And then finally, the fear or

         18  misinformation factor that cannot be under-

         19  appreciated when we look at access to health care

         20  for immigrants, both documented and undocumented.

         21  There is an anti- immigrant feeling in this country

         22  that frightens many of us today, even if we are not

         23  immigrants.  New York City has a better record in

         24  history to its immigrant population than most parts

         25  of the country.  But when we all hear about the
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          2  Rohrabacher Amendment, which was finally defeated in

          3  Congress, and the current proposal reporting

          4  regulations for distribution of funding for

          5  hospitals that provide care for undocumented

          6  immigrants, we need to fight back against these

          7  proposals.

          8                 Fears growing in the immigrant

          9  community that going for health care will mean that

         10  people will be deported.  And so we just have four

         11  recommendations and that is:

         12                 We urge the Council to adopt

         13  Resolution 568, calling upon the Department of

         14  Federal Health and Human Services to withdraw its

         15  proposed reporting regulations related to funding

         16  for care of undocumented immigrants.  The Council

         17  should also urge all hospitals to reject this

         18  funding as was done by the Health and Hospitals

         19  Corporation, if the reporting regulations are not

         20  changed.

         21                 We also urge the City Council to

         22  adopt Resolution 371- A, urging the State Senate to

         23  adopt S.5161, requiring all hospitals to provide

         24  patient language assistance services for the

         25  communication of clinical and other services.  As
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          2  you have heard today, it is common for patients to

          3  not receive interpreter services or to be asked to

          4  sign papers that are not translated in their

          5  language.  This law is necessary because the current

          6  federal and state regulations requiring language

          7  communication, are largely ignored by the hospitals

          8  and the public agencies required to monitor and

          9  enforce these requirements.

         10                 And then we would additionally urge

         11  the City Council's Health Committee to finish the

         12  draft legislation and hold public hearings on the

         13  resolution to require hospitals to adopt charity

         14  care policies, and make those policies publicly

         15  available. The Commission met with the Health

         16  Committee Chairperson to urge the writing of such

         17  legislative language, and we have also commented on

         18  drafts of this bill, and hope that it will shortly

         19  be introduced and voted on by the Council.

         20                 And then finally, we would urge the

         21  City Council to support, both financially and

         22  otherwise, the health care safety net available for

         23  immigrants in this City.  For example, the Child

         24  Health Clinics have an almost 100- year history of

         25  providing primary and preventive care for immigrant
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          2  children without a fee. Unfortunately, the Health

          3  and Hospitals Corporation recently began

          4  implementing a fee scale in these clinics, therefore

          5  requiring parents to answer questions and produce

          6  documents that have not been required in the past.

          7  We know that preventive care for everyone is

          8  important, but it is even more important for

          9  children to grow up healthy.  The Council must

         10  ensure that Child Health Clinics have the funding

         11  needed to ensure that all children have access to

         12  this care without barriers.

         13                 Thank you, again for allowing us to

         14  testify.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Thank you for

         16  your testimony, but I have a little concern.  We, in

         17  the City Council, usually commit millions of dollars

         18  in terms of capital to private institutions, the

         19  hospitals that are private.

         20                 Do you think by any measure that we

         21  should look at the policies, the immigration

         22  policies and their language policy, language service

         23  policy in determining our awards to these hospitals?

         24    Do you feel that that is, we should be doing

         25  things like that?
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          2                 MR. MORANTE:  It should be a

          3  priority.

          4                 MR. GURVITCH:  You know, it is hard

          5  to know what the Council's legal authority is over

          6  private and non- profit hospitals in New York City.

          7  But we would be very encouraged if the Council were

          8  to find, for example, bond issues and other kind of

          9  perks that private hospitals are able to access to

         10  their benefit from the City, and find ways of making

         11  some of those perks available only on the condition

         12  that hospitals have adequate public notice of their

         13  sliding scale and charity care policies, have an

         14  appropriate communication policy in practice, in

         15  place, and so forth.

         16                 It is shameful, and it is so

         17  encouraging other see the public hospital system

         18  rising above and continuing to improve both its care

         19  and its relationship with communities.  Whereas, we

         20  see private hospitals that just do not have their

         21  doors open.  And, you know, I am not sure how much

         22  time there will be for other testimony, but I wanted

         23  to mention a case in Queens where a group is

         24  noticing that more and more, if their clients, who

         25  typically go to Elmhurst, now go down to Bellevue.
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          2  Whereas there are a number of private hospitals in

          3  Queens, they do not know that they can actually get

          4  care there, because of language barriers.  They also

          5  have not been notified the hospital --  Bless you -

          6   -  of sliding scale and affordable options for

          7  care.

          8                 And so whatever the Council can do to

          9  bring pressure to bear on private hospitals would be

         10  extraordinarily appreciated.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  The reason why

         12  I asked that question is that the City has a law now

         13  in place, basically to deal with people or

         14  organizations with contracts with the City to

         15  perform to do, for example, provide benefits in

         16  terms of domestic partners, all of those things.  We

         17  just had a bill passed to deal with that.  If you

         18  don't follow that, in terms of a contract, you will

         19  not be able to get a contract with the City.

         20                 So I am looking at the same type of

         21  arrangement that if we, if you were to get capital

         22  funds, which is millions of dollars, you should be

         23  carrying out the policies of the City.  So I am just

         24  asking if you agree with that, you know, if you

         25  understand where I am coming from, because I feel we
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          2  can then focus the, our interests on what these

          3  private institutions do in terms of helping and

          4  providing service for immigrants.

          5                 MS. VAAMONDE:  I actually think it is

          6  a brilliant idea, and I think the only issue is to

          7  determine is where the over lapse of regulation and

          8  enforcement are between you and the State Department

          9  of Health and other entities in sort of the

         10  government area.

         11                 One issue, which I think is clear is

         12  that you guys absolutely have the authority to

         13  require them to put notices up, that they do have

         14  charity care policies as Adam was discussing. But

         15  also I would urge them to put up notices about what

         16  their language access policies are, and what

         17  languages they need to be in, and who the

         18  ombudsperson within the hospital is available to

         19  help someone who cannot get the interpreter, how you

         20  reach someone who is going to help you do it.

         21                 The other thing you could do, is you

         22  could ask the State Department of Health to share

         23  with you the information on the, they are called the

         24  Institutional Cost Reports, which is where the

         25  hospital alleges the quantity of charity care that
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          2  they have given in a year.  So that you could

          3  investigate whether or not these facilities are

          4  actually living up to their stated mission, which is

          5  to provide care to everybody.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I just wanted to

          7  add, Kendall, I think it is a great idea, and we

          8  should definitely go back and look at it both in the

          9  context of the Charity Care Legislation that we have

         10  been working on, but also somewhat the bill that we

         11  passed a year or so ago about emergency

         12  contraception that said if you had a contract with

         13  the City, you were required to offer emergency

         14  contraception to all sexual assault victims in the

         15  emergency room. So we could use that as a model.

         16                 And it is interesting, just as kind

         17  of an FYI, in researching that bill we found out

         18  that we have a lot, we meaning the Council, have a

         19  lot of latitude around contracts for the private

         20  hospitals.  We interestingly have less latitude

         21  around the contracts with the Health and Hospitals

         22  Corporation, because the law requires that the City

         23  fund the Health and Hospitals Corporation,

         24  tragically it does not say at what level, but, so we

         25  really cannot do bills that say we will cancel our
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          2  contracts with HHC, unless they behaved in X in such

          3  a way.  Which is good in this case, because they are

          4  all behaving fine.  But we have more ability there

          5  in the contracting process around the privates.  The

          6  tension around the contracting bills ends up being

          7  that Mayor Bloomberg does not, he has philosophical

          8  concerns about contracting issues, but since there

          9  is such an agreement on immigration issues, maybe we

         10  will be able to overcome that in this case.  So we

         11  definitely should follow- up on that.

         12                 Adam, I wanted to, oh, I wrote it

         13  down somewhere, oh, there it is.  You had said the

         14  Council should conduct, you know, a public service

         15  campaign.  It is a great idea, it is not something

         16  that we have ever done, so I do not know that we

         17  have the resources to do it.  But one small step in

         18  that direction that I think Chairperson Stewart and

         19  I could send to out to our colleagues is if you, or

         20  HHC, or whomever was to work up a couple of

         21  paragraphs that said, sent a message about immigrant

         22  health care, you know, about HHC's not following the

         23  federal regs, et cetera, et cetera, whatever

         24  information we want to get out there about HHC, or

         25  whatever, we could then circulate that to our
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          2  colleagues, and through our Member Services

          3  Division, and suggest that our colleagues include

          4  those paragraphs in their next newsletters in their

          5  districts.

          6                 So I think we would be happy to do

          7  that, and it is a way that, you know, people get

          8  communicated with on a fairly regular basis.  So if

          9  you could get us something like that, maybe work

         10  with John Drakgo or whomever at HHC, so it is the

         11  right message, I think that would be a positive.

         12                 MR. GURVITCH:  Thank you for that

         13  opportunity.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And I also wanted

         15  to throw out, you know, in the discussion about Make

         16  the Road by Walking, and other folks who have had

         17  impacts on hospitals, we should not forget the tool

         18  that the Community Advisory Boards are.  And I know

         19  that around, you know Woodhull has been interested

         20  in the past on the part of HHC to get some of the

         21  folks who had concerns about the hospital on the CAB

         22  so that they could be an internal and an external

         23  voice.  And I just want to remind all of us that

         24  around these issues we should, to the degree

         25  possible, try to get representatives of the
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          2  immigrant communities participating in the CAB, and

          3  anything we can do to help with that.

          4                 Doctor, I wanted to ask you, have you

          5  ever heard the complaint from patients or advocates

          6  that I raised earlier, that sometimes people feel

          7  like they get rushed on the phone?

          8                 DR. GANY:  I often - -

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Moved the mic

         10  over, just because we are taping.

         11                 DR. GANY:  I have actually heard more

         12  of the complaint that when a staff member is used,

         13  even if they have been trained, because they have

         14  all of their other jobs to do in the institution,

         15  that they give a really short shrift.  So I think

         16  that is also a concern, and maybe even a greater

         17  one.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you, okay.

         19  Thank you all very much.

         20                 Next I am going to call up four

         21  folks, although I think only two of them are

         22  actually giving testimony, and I am almost positive

         23  I am pretty sure I am going to say this name wrong,

         24  unless you can pronounce it correctly?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Kathy
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          2  Momperousse.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Kathy

          4  Momperousse, Seongho Kim, Nora Chaves, and Maria

          5  Santos.

          6                 MS. CHAVES:  My name is Nora Chaves.

          7  I am the Health Access Coordinator of the Latin - -

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Could you just

          9  hang on for one second?  I am sorry, the four folks

         10  who are supposed to be up there, Kathy Momperousse,

         11  I am sorry, Seongho Kim, Nora Chaves, and Maria

         12  Santos.  So those are the four folks that should be

         13  up there. So is Maria Santos here?  Oh great, why

         14  don't you take the other seat up there.  Exactly,

         15  there we go, perfect, thank you.

         16                 MS. CHAVES:  I am Nora Chaves, and I

         17  am the Health Access Coordinator of the Latin

         18  American Integration Center.  And I am joined today

         19  by Seongho Kim from Korean Community Services, -

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  If folks could

         21  just take the conversations outside, it kind of

         22  echoes in here a little bit. Sorry.

         23                 MS. CHAVES: - - and Kathy Momperousse

         24  from Haitian- Americans United for Progress.

         25  Together we work with The Legal Aid Society, the
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          2  Health Law Unit, and the New York Immigration

          3  Coalition and the Immigrant Health Access and

          4  Advocacy Collaborative to help immigrants overcome

          5  the barriers they encounter when accessing health

          6  care.

          7                 The issues that we want to address

          8  today are the communication barriers that immigrants

          9  face at City agencies and hospitals with high cost

         10  of health care that combined with the lack of

         11  information about sliding fee scales and reduced

         12  cost care deters those who are in need, and lack

         13  health insurance from seeing timely care.  And that

         14  fears and concerns that determined immigrants from

         15  applying for public health insurance.

         16                 Communication barriers at many

         17  hospitals are putting the lives of hundreds of

         18  thousands of New Yorkers who are Limited English

         19  Proficient at risk.  In a survey we conducted with

         20  Limited English Proficient patients at four

         21  hospitals, we found that one out of three patients

         22  never received services in a language they could

         23  understand; one out of four patients did not

         24  understand their diagnosis of treatment.  When

         25  hospitals fail to communicate with Limited English-
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          2  speaking patients, our community members are unable

          3  to make medical appointments, walking out without

          4  receiving vital care, are uncertain of how to take

          5  prescribed medications, and are having medical

          6  procedures performed on them without their consent.

          7  Since many hospitals do not have a functioning

          8  system to provide language access services when

          9  patients request an interpreter, they often find

         10  that none is available, they are forced to

         11  reschedule appointments or to receive care without

         12  adequate communication, which puts them at risk for

         13  misunderstandings and medical errors. Patients have

         14  been told to bring their own interpreters, and

         15  sometimes parents have to rely on their children or

         16  on strangers to communicate with doctors.

         17                 The lack of communication also leads

         18  to inappropriate billing practices by the hospitals.

         19    Because hospitals fail to communicate with

         20  patients, a number of our clients who were covered

         21  by health insurance, later received bills for the

         22  full amount of the cost of the medical services.

         23  Many others who are low- income enough to qualify

         24  for public health coverage do not receive any

         25  information about their options, instead they
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          2  receive a bill they cannot pay.

          3                 Mrs. M is a Korean- speaking client

          4  who received a bill for over $10,000 for an

          5  emergency procedure.  On numerous occasions when she

          6  called the billing office to negotiate the bill, no

          7  one was able to communicate with her in Korean.  She

          8  was transferred from one department to another.  She

          9  finally found her way to a social worker at one of

         10  our community organizations.  We informed her that

         11  she was eligible for the Prenatal Care Assistance

         12  Program (PCAP) and assisted her with the

         13  application.

         14                 Hospitals cannot continue endangering

         15  the lives of hardworking immigrants and their

         16  families.  It is imperative that hospitals live up

         17  to their mission by reducing communication barriers,

         18  and providing access and quality services to all.

         19                 We applaud HHC for its leadership in

         20  developing the Queens Network Language Access policy

         21  that has resulted in language services for many of

         22  our clients.  On the other hand, many private

         23  hospitals are providing poor, quality care and

         24  denying access to many more Limited English

         25  Proficient patients.
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          2                 And I really want to emphasize

          3  something that was not mentioned before, my

          4  organization is based in Woodside, and we see many

          5  patients who used to go to Elmhurst Hospital, but

          6  because Elmhurst has become very overcrowded, they

          7  are traveling all the way to Gouverneur and to

          8  Bellevue, just because they know that there they can

          9  get sliding fee scale, and that they can also get

         10  language services.

         11                 We applaud the Council resolution in

         12  support of state legislation, and urge the Council

         13  to provide City funding to support innovative

         14  systems of providing language services.  And we also

         15  ask the City Council to look at ways that the City

         16  mandate hospitals to provide language assistance to

         17  Limited English Proficient patients.

         18                 Another problem that we find that

         19  instead of informing low- income patients that

         20  programs like Medicaid, Emergency Medicaid, sliding

         21  fee scale, and Charity Care are available, hospitals

         22  are sending the full bills to patients.  Even after

         23  we inform our clients about the availability of

         24  Emergency Medicaid, they find numerous difficulties

         25  when returning to the hospital to locate the
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          2  treating physician and obtain their signature for

          3  the Emergency Medicaid application.  So even though

          4  it is a very simple form, they cannot find the

          5  physician who treated them, and the hospital

          6  sometimes don't cooperate with them. So they just

          7  leave the bill unpaid.

          8                 For many in our community who are

          9  unable to resolve their bills on their own, this

         10  sends a message that care is not affordable.

         11  Enormous medical bills discourage many uninsured

         12  patients from seeking expensive follow- up or

         13  preventative care. These individuals end up in the

         14  emergency room receiving more costly care that could

         15  have been prevented if the providers would have made

         16  it possible for patients to access affordable care.

         17  As an example, one of the Collaborative's clients

         18  learned that HHC offers a sliding- fee scale, Mr. F.

         19  Made an appointment and was able to have timely

         20  surgery for a hernia before it required more costly

         21  emergency care.

         22                 In our communities, it is common

         23  knowledge that if patients do not have insurance

         24  they are not welcomed at many private hospitals.  In

         25  the Haitian community in Queens, patients will only
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          2  seek care at Jamaica Hospital, if they are covered

          3  by insurance.  These notions that private hospitals

          4  do not provide care to the uninsured is based on the

          5  experience of individuals being denied access at

          6  these facilities.  For instance, Mrs. Lee was

          7  receiving care for a tumor in her neck at a Flushing

          8  Hospital. Since she was uninsured, she paid hundred

          9  dollars out- of- pocket for each visit, including

         10  extensive tests.  Her doctor informed her that

         11  surgery was necessary and an appointment was made.

         12  But when the doctor learned that she was

         13  undocumented and uninsured, he cancelled the surgery

         14  and told her that she could not continue getting

         15  care at Flushing Hospital.  With the assistance of

         16  an advocate, she was able to continue the necessary

         17  treatment at Elmhurst Hospital.

         18                 Both public and private hospitals are

         19  routinely billing uninsured patients for emergency

         20  care, when in fact these patients are eligible for

         21  federal Emergency Medicaid.  Hospitals should not be

         22  permitted to bill low- income patients for out-

         23  patient emergency care that can be paid for by the

         24  Emergency Medicaid.

         25                 Whereas at private facilities it is
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          2  often very difficult for a patient to find

          3  information on the hospital's sliding fee scale, HHC

          4  facilities have made it clear to the public that an

          5  affordable sliding fee scale is available to all

          6  qualifying patients.  This well- known public policy

          7  opens the doors for community members to receive

          8  health care at a rate they can afford. Our community

          9  members feel safe and comfortable accessing care at

         10  HHC facilities.  For many of our community members

         11  in Queens, Elmhurst Hospital provides their primary

         12  source of care.  Due to the overcrowding and long-

         13  wait times at Elmhurst Hospital, many of our

         14  community members go all the way to Manhattan for

         15  care.

         16                 The City Council should explore how

         17  to make private hospitals more accessible to the

         18  uninsured, and more accountable for their billing

         19  practices.  All hospitals in New York City should be

         20  required to publish in various languages information

         21  on their sliding fee scale, and charity care policy,

         22  and counsel patients on their eligibility for public

         23  insurance and other payment options.

         24                 The City Council should investigate

         25  why hospitals fail to bill the federal government
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          2  for Emergency Medicaid.

          3                 There is more information in the

          4  testimony about the barriers that our community

          5  members continue encountering at the Medicaid

          6  offices, and immigrants concerns.  But I will leave

          7  more time for the others.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 MS. SANTOS:  (In Spanish.)

         10                 DEE:  My name is Dee, and we are

         11  members of the Make the Road by Walking.  I am going

         12  to translate what she said.

         13                  "Hello.  My name is Maria Santos.  I

         14  have visited hospitals in New York this past year on

         15  two occasions and my experiences have been very

         16  frustrating because I have not received

         17  interpretation services in Spanish.  Many immigrants

         18  face serious problems as a result of the lack of

         19  interpretation and translation services in the

         20  hospitals.  Now, we are very afraid that these

         21  communication problems will not just cause health

         22  problems, but also problems with immigration because

         23  President Bush wants to convert emergency rooms into

         24  places to enforce immigration law. This is a huge

         25  mistake and it could cause immigrants to not seek or

                                                            137

          1  HEALTH AND IMMIGRATION

          2  receive needed medical care out of fear.  Put

          3  simply, it would endanger public health.

          4                 MS. SANTOS:  (In Spanish.)

          5                 DEE:  My first problem with the lack

          6  of translation services was in July when I went to

          7  get a physical as part of the process of applying

          8  for SSI.  I felt confused because when the man that

          9  took the information about my case, I am not sure

         10  who he was because he never identified himself,

         11  spoke only English and I could not understand what

         12  he said.  What I did was that I sat down and waited.

         13    When it was my turn, he preferred to take other

         14  patients who spoke English before helping me through

         15  an interpreter.  I felt confused, humiliated and

         16  discriminated against.

         17                 MS. SANTOS:  (In Spanish.)

         18                 DEE:  And later when it was my turn

         19  and he was going to see me, he said again that I

         20  should find an interpreter.  I knew this because one

         21  of the other waiting patients explained to me that

         22  he said that I needed to find someone to help me.

         23  This type of thing should not be happening because

         24  strangers should not know my personal health

         25  problems.
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          2                 MS. SANTOS:  (In Spanish.)

          3                 DEE: The second occasion that I

          4  suffered discrimination was when I had an

          5  appointment to get a breast exam done.  I was very

          6  confused because I was asking all over the hospital

          7  where I needed to go, and nobody could tell me in

          8  Spanish where I needed to go.  I was desperate,

          9  without an answer, but finally after a lot of

         10  wandering around, a woman, who did not speak Spanish

         11  appeared and took me to the area of the hospital

         12  that I needed to go.

         13                 MS. SANTOS:  (In Spanish.)

         14                 DEE:  When they did the exam, the

         15  person who did it did not speak Spanish, and I went

         16  home without knowing what they had found.  I felt

         17  very nervous.  In about four  weeks, I received the

         18  letter, in English, that described the results of my

         19  exam.  If I had been sick, or if I had a problem in

         20  one of my breasts my condition would have gotten

         21  worse during the time that it took for me to learn

         22  the results of my exam.  This would have happened

         23  because of a lack of interpretation services that it

         24  was the hospital's responsibility to have.

         25                 MS. SANTOS:  (In Spanish.)
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          2                 DEE:  There is a serious problem of

          3  discrimination against immigrants in New York

          4  Hospitals.  Now there is more danger than ever,

          5  though, because of plans to turn emergency rooms

          6  into places to enforced immigration law.  This

          7  situation is unjust and we, the immigrant community,

          8  here in New York City, deserve better treatment.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Is anyone else

         10  testifying?  No, I didn't think so, okay.

         11                 Thank you all very much for your

         12  testimony, and your work and presence here today.

         13  Thank you.

         14                 And with that final  panel, the joint

         15  Committee of Health and the Immigration Committee is

         16  adjourned.  And we welcome everybody to join us on

         17  the steps of City Hall for a press conference.

         18                 (Hearing adjourned at 1:12 p.m.)

         19                 (The following testimony was read

         20  into the record.)

         21

         22  Testimony of:

         23  Amanda Lugg

         24  Community Advocate

         25  African- American Services Committee
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          2                 African- American Services Committee

          3  is a 23- year- old community- based organization

          4  dedicated to improving the health and self-

          5  sufficiency of the African- American community in

          6  New York City through direct health, housing, social

          7  and legal services to African- American refugees and

          8  immigrants, as well as AIDS advocacy, policy work,

          9  and technical assistance benefiting African-

         10  American NGO's in the US and African- American.

         11                 According other the March 2000

         12  consensus, the New York City region has the largest

         13  absolute number and highest percentage of African-

         14  American immigrants.  It is estimated that there are

         15    approximately 450,000 African- born immigrants

         16  living in the New York City area, 80 percent of whom

         17  are undocumented.  At the HIV testing center at

         18  African- American Services Committee, of those

         19  African- born immigrants that voluntarily test for

         20  HIV, 6.5 percent test positive.  This translates to

         21  as many as 20,000 Africans living with HIV in New

         22  York City.  Thousands of others  are affected by

         23  diseases such as TB, syphilis, chronic malaria and

         24  other parasitic diseases, as well as chronic

         25  ophalmological, dental and cardiovascular
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          2  conditions.

          3                 With the large majority of African-

          4  American immigrants to New York City being

          5  Francophone, non- English speaking, though we are

          6  seeing increasing numbers of Southern and East

          7  African- American immigrants to the city, the number

          8  one barrier to assessing health care in the African-

          9  American immigrant community is language.  There is

         10  a need for more medical and non medical service

         11  providers to speak the language and just as

         12  importantly, to have a working knowledge of the

         13  culture of the population they are serving.  A third

         14  party interpreter breeches patient confidentiality.

         15  Also third party interpreters may be administrative

         16  staff or family members and therefore are not

         17  formally trained to translate.  Hospitals must

         18  provide these translation services by trained

         19  medical providers.

         20                 While the purported intent of Section

         21  1011 is torn provide $1 billion in funding to

         22  hospitals for emergency care for undocumented

         23  immigrants,  we believe that the proposed

         24  implementation of this provision will have serious

         25  detrimental consequences on immigrant patients and
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          2  health care providers.  Any process that requires

          3  providers to ask patients to declare or provide

          4  evidence of their immigration status will determined

          5  many immigrants and their families, documented dandy

          6  undocumented, from seeking vital emergency medical

          7  care.  This not only will harm individuals, but

          8  could also pose a huge public health risk in terms

          9  of advancing the number of undiagnosed HIV cases in

         10  New York.  In addition, the proposal would place an

         11  undue burden on hospital emergency rooms to question

         12  patients and document their immigration status in

         13  order to receive federal funding.

         14                 Recommendations:

         15                 Proxy payment Methodology:

         16                 We strongly urge a proxy methodology

         17  to distribute Section 1011 funds.  To estimate the

         18  cost of care for undocumented immigrants, the proxy

         19  methodology could be based on a ratio of emergency

         20  Medicaid to full- scope Medicaid patients served by

         21  a provider and apply that ratio to the providers'

         22  overall uncompensated care costs, as recommended by

         23  the National Association of Public Hospitals and

         24  health Systems.  This proxy methodology will be

         25  auditable and minimize the administrative burden to
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          2  providers.

          3                 Documentation:

          4                 We strongly recommend that DHHS avoid

          5  any approach of collecting patient- specific

          6  information. The proposed information collection

          7  instrument for documenting citizenship requires

          8  hospitals to record the patient's name, address,

          9  place of birth, and immigration status.  When

         10  providers are forced to ask probing questions

         11  regarding their immigration status with no

         12  safeguards in place to prevent the sharing of

         13  information with federal immigration authorities,

         14  undocumented immigrants will not seek emergency care

         15  out of fear of being deported.  This process of

         16  inquiring about patients' immigration status will

         17  generate widespread fear and confusion in immigrant

         18  communities. Individuals, regardless of their

         19  immigration status, will avoid seeking emergency

         20  medical care for themselves and their children which

         21  could result in loss of life or in far more costly

         22  care being needed down the line.  In addition,

         23  collecting patient- specific information will place

         24  an inordinately administrative burden on providers.

         25  Hospitals will have to introduce costly technology
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          2  and training in order to meet the requirements in

          3  this proposal.

          4                 In addition, it should be clarified

          5  in Section 1011 regulations, that all patient-

          6  specific information, including immigration status,

          7  will not be shared with other agencies unless it is

          8  necessary for the delivery of health care.

          9                 The purpose of the funding is to

         10  assist hospitals in covering the costs of providing

         11  emergency care to those who need it while "not

         12  compromising public health by discouraging

         13  undocumented immigrants for seeking necessary

         14  treatment," as stated in the proposal.  If Section

         15  1011 is implemented as currently proposed, it would

         16  discourage people with urgent health care needs form

         17  seeking medical services, defeating its intended

         18  purpose.

         19                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         20  submit comments.

         21                 (Hearing concluded at 1:12 p.m.)

         22

         23

         24

         25
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          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, PAT WTULICH, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 29th day of September 2004.
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                                   ---------------------

         24                          PAT WTULICH
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          9            I, PAT WTULICH, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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